Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Limited
o/ J—J‘

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020

CONTENTS

page
Chairperson 2
Audit 4
Finance 34
Chief Executive Officer 36
Human Resource Manager 43
Senior Medical Officer 45
Allied Health 47
Brewarrina Aboriginal Medical Service 55
Children’s Services Team 62
Chronic Diseases 66
Clinic 72
Dental 78
Dharriwaa Elders Group 83

Ly ww

%
i ill

OLICE CITIZENS
YOUTH CLUBS NSW

&&Wmfamagsmmeﬁé%
Funded by: Federal Dept of Social Services — National Indigenous Australians Agency 1
NSW Health — Rural Doctors Network — Western NSW Primary Health Network



Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT
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Introduction

The front page of the Annual Report indicates the first design for the new development
spanning both Pitt and Wee Waa Streets. The Directors have engaged a company whose
focus is on the design of building that is conducive to the climate, the soil and the way in
which we conduct our businesses. The Modules are being constructed interstate and Board
members and senior personnel had the opportunity to view the assembly of the development.
Further information will be supplied in the body of my report.

As we commence this financial year, Walgett has once again been exposed to several pitfalls
of rural living. The lack of continued water flow in the two rivers, the extreme heat and
questionable domestic tap water has compounded to daily living. Our communities have
persevered to manage the consumption and usage of this ‘liquid’ gold.

The worldwide pandemic, coronavirus, has changed the way in which WAMS conduct their
business. Adhering to health and safety regulations, e.g. the wearing of Personal Protection
Equipment (PPE) is an additional expense to our businesses. | sincerely thank all of our staff
who have been flexible in providing services to our clients who cannot leave their homes.

Quality

WAMS recently made a cultural, operational and social decision by moving from the current accrediting
agency to a place-based agencies that focuses on the philosophies of local Aboriginal community
controlled service delivery. Te Wana has been adapted for both the New Zealand and Australian
services and is one of the very few programs with an emphasis on continuous improvement and cultural
capability with a specific Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander focus

We undertook our next cycle of Accreditation in December with Te Wana and were formally advised in
the New Year that WAMS will receive twelve months accreditation. During this time they are to respond
to the recommendations for change to both governance and business operations.

The organisation known as White Ribbon Australia (WRA) is no longer functioning. We are yet to
see what agency shall replace it, if at all. However, WAMS are committed to conducting business
along the principles of providing a service that is safe and respectful for both clients and staff.

Quality in Governance

The Board of Directors continue to adhere to the priorities as indicated in the Strategic Plan.
Their focus of community engagement, client services, maintaining human resources in
keeping with financial obligations and management is integral to good governance.

To follow on from the overseas visit to view cultural designed educational and training styles,
several meetings have occurred to plan a program that is local-based with adaptive learning
methods for two streams of training — for Aboriginal people to become Registered Nurses
and for community members to understand the effects of drugs and alcohol whilst attaining
formal credentials once the course is completed.

We have continued to undertake governance training by MJSP. Due to state and federal
government limitations during the first part of 2020, we have had to suspend this training
until travel restrictions allow people to move between borders.
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Building Expansions, Maintenance and Renovations

The facility is made up of six smaller buildings that are linked by covered walkways, which can
accommodate soil movement. The building was designed with a large degree of flexibility and will
cater for more space for clinics, programs and offices. Rooms can easily switch between offices and
clinical/consulting rooms. Areas are allocated with allowances for particular needs of programs in
various utility rooms. The new exercise therapy room is three times the size of the existing area. A
general hall seating 100 people can be used by the public.

The Project Manager commenced his regular on-site visits in June to review the status of the
modules that arrived, to have follow up meetings with Council, as well as consulting with
Director Cran and myself on the finer details of construction.

We have used local publicity for the message to be conveyed. Staff have had the opportunity
to walk staff through the properties during the second stage of the development. It seems that
late this year may be the time that we can receive the keys. We wait in anticipation

Visitors

In the first half of the reporting period, WAMS offered their welcome mat to a range of people and
agencies who were keen to garner the views of WAMS and its impact on community and social
support within our service areas.

Visitors have dwindled this year due to the pandemic across the world, have been experiencing.
However, WAMS have lobbied to various politicians, governing Ministers and those in opposition,
to bring to their attention the social difficulties we experience, which have been further
exacerbated by the loss of the only local supermarket in June 2020

Brewarrina Aboriginal Medical Service

BAMS continues to expend their business across the allied health and specialists services. As
well as regular Locums. The Manager, Ms Katrina Ward, is committed to ensuring the community
members of Brewarrina community receive a sustained the consistent balance of quality client
care. The ongoing growth of service delivery by BAMS has influenced WAMS to lobby for a
purpose built facility, as well as accommodation for staff. We are hopeful that our requests are
favorably received.

Conclusion

The past twelve months have shown the resilience and endurance of our community. With local
upheaval and the unexpected changes to the way we live each day during the pandemic, | wish to
pay tribute to the Board and the staff who have been at the forefront of caring for our clients and
advocating in the community.

The new financial year shall hopefully see the completion of the development, as well as celebrating
the thirty five years of WAMS serving the community. These two milestones are positive
achievements for WAMS and for Walgett.

BILL KENNEDY, CHAIRPERSON
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Limited

ABN; T8 014 990 481

Directors’ Report
30 June 2020

Tha directors present their report on Walgatt Abtoriginal Medical Service Limited (the Corporation) for the financial year
ended 30 fune 2020,

1. General Information
Directors

The names of the dirzcters in office at any brme during, or since the end of, the year arg;

Mamaa

William Kennedy
Bert Gordon

Mary Puese
Donald Cran
George Famnandeg
Iris Hall

Elizabeth Kennedy

Directors have been in offica since Lhe stant of the financial year to the date of Lhis repart unless alherwisa stated,
Principal activities

The principal aclivity of Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Limited during the financial year wera {o:

. fostar and strenglhen the development of Aboriginal culture and idanlity;

] provide an accessible medical service to Aboriginal peapls;

. provide health promelion programs that meet the needs of Aboriginal people;

. azsigt Aboriginal people to use existing health services effectively, and

* promole understanding amang Llhe members of Lha health system {at all levels). the genaral community and

politicians so that adequate provision is made for Lhe needs of Abanginal people.
Mo significant ehanges in the nalure of the Corporation's activity oceured durng the financial year.
2. Opersting results and revlew of operations for the year
Operating resulis
The lass of the Corporatinn after providing for income tax amounted to $(719.487} (2019 3(240.087}})
Dividends pald or recommended

Mo dgividends were paid or declared since the start of the financial year. No recommendation far payment of dividends
has been mads.
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Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Limited

ABH: T8 D14 ¥H 451

Directors’' Report
30 June 2020

2. Operating results and review of cperations for the year [continusd)
FReview of operations

A revienw of he operations of the Corporation during the financial year and the results of those operatiens show doctors
fee revenue has remained comparable o 2012, however, contractor eXpenses has incregsed £523.678. This is a
result of increases in recruitment costs and the overall turnover of doctors during the financial yaar.

3.  Other ltems
Slgniflcant changes Tn state of affairs

There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Corparation during the year.

Events aftar tha reporling data

Mo matters or circumstances have ansen since tha end of the financial year which significantly affecled or may
significantly affect the operations of the Corporation, lhe rasulls of those oparations or Lhe atate of affairs of tha
Corporation in future financial years.

Futura developments and resulis

The directers are not aware of any likely develepments that will materially affect the results of the Corparation’s
cperations in future financial years.

Environmental issuss

The Corperation’s cperations ame not regulated by any significant envirpnmanta! regulations under a law of [he
Commonwealth or of a state or lerritory of Australia.

The dirgglors befieve the Comporation has adequate systems in pface for the management of s environmentsl
requirgments and sre not aware of 2ny breach of thase enviranmental requiremeants as they apply o the Corparatian.

Infermalien en directors

William Kennedy

Ceoupabion Relired

Bert Gordan

Qecupabicn Local Land Senices Field Officer

Mary Porse

Qocoupation Ratired

Donald Cran

Cooupation Abariginal Liaigon Dfficer - N3W Police

George Fernando
Ccoupation Ratired
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Directors' Report

30 June 2020

nfarmalen an diresiers (sontinued)

lris Hall
Qecupalion

Elzabaih Kannady
Qocupation

Fatined

Enrgllad Hursa - Community Lixson Yyalgelt Health Services

HMestinge of fGractars

During the finaneizl year, 11 maetings of diragioe [refuding committaas of diracters) wira hefd, Atlandances by each
direcior during e year were &5 [0l hras:

Dlractors' Meatings

Murbar allg'ble Mumtor

to altend ttanded
Waliam Kennedy i 1
Ber Gordan i1 )
tary Pures 11 3
Ranafd Cran 11 11
Qaorge Fernanda 11 g
Irig Hall 1 1
Elirabatt Kennzedy 11 11

Indamnifizatien end Insurance of ofilcers and avd tors

No Indermnilies have bean ghvan or ingurance gremiume paid, dufing or Fnee the end of the fnanckal year, for eny
persen whn is ar haz bean an officar of awdiler o YWalgolt Abdriginal hedical Sesmes Limited.

Auditors indepandance dealarallan

The auvditors indepandence deglaration In agcgrdence with Section 53-40 of (ha Austratian Chanities and Not-for-graft
Commission Act 2002, for the year endad 33 Juae 2020 has been ecatved and can be dound an page 4 ol |he

financia! veport

Signad In sepordanca wilh a resution of e Board of Direcions:

Qvecior: LO

Datad 24 Novemte: 2020

Elire:l-:u:.."t:'f.‘.lf...i.,..,... ...
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ABH: 78 014 9094 451

Auditor's Independence Beclaration

under Section 60-40 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profit
Commission Act 2012

to the Directors of Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Limited

I daclara that, to tha bast of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 Juna 2020, there have baen:

{i} no canlraventions of tha auditor independance requirements as set aut in the Australian Charities and Mot-far-
prafits Commission Act 2012 in eelation [ the audit; and

{ii) naoconiraventians of any applicabls code of prefessional conductin relaticn to the audit,

Ryan and Rankmara
Charterad Accountants

%% @VV/WW'

Kevln Rankmore
RCA 1656

113-115 Darling Street
DUBEBO HEW 2830

Dated 24 November 2020
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Walgett Aboriginal Medical Sarvice Limited

ABH: 78 01d ¥30 451

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2020 2013
Mota § 5

Revanyg Afa) 9,840,500 S, 159 360
Other income b 234,324 313,205
Accounting and audil fees (67,711) [92,125)
Accommodation, meals and travel {383,062) (410,708)
Board axpenses (27,253) {18,400
Consulting and professional fees {161 ,028) {260 968)
Contractrs [2,387.142) (1,848, 464)
Dapreciation and amortisation expanse 7] {633,280) (640,811
Employesa expanss 5 (6,486,272) (4,704 552)
Meadical and dental supplies {113,212) {159,885)
Qecupancy coals {297,057] (271,823)
Other operaling expanses {481,147] (459 922)
Program costs {105418) {104,313
Repairs and maintenance [233,885) (485,797
Telephone, intermet and technalogy [437,6848] (274, 787)
Profitf [loss) before lncome tax |719,497) (240,087
Income tax gxpense - -

Frofitf {loss) for the year [719,497) {240 087
Oither comprehensiva ingomea, net of income tax - f

Total comprehensive income for the year |719,4%7) (240,087)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Limited

ABH: 75 (14 390 451

Statement of Financial Position

As At 30 June 2020
2020 2014

Mot 5 &
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Caah and cash equivalents = 6,696,338 9,652 801
Trade and olher receivables 7 249,295 260,139
Other assels 8 - 231
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 7,145,633 8 645251
MON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fraperty, plant and equipment o 10,858,778 7,882 257
TOTAL MON-CURRENT ASSETS 10.858.779 7 682 267
TOTAL ASSETS 16,004,412 17,837,518
LIAEILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payahles 10 924 570 426 965
Borrowings 11 100,203 -
Emplayae benefits 12 578,014 462 189
Other liabilities i3 382180 387,573
Lease fiabilities 14 173,204 192 505
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2159 368 1 463 212
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Employee benefits 12 96,235 -
Lease liabilities 14 388,301 388, 301
TOTAL MON-CUREENT LIABILITIES 284,634 388 301
NET ASSETS 15,360,508 16,080,005
EQUITY
Retainad earnings 15,360,608 16,080,005
TOTAL EQUNTY 15,360,508 16,080,005

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Walgett Aborlginal Medical Service Limited

ABH: 78 014 830 461

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2020

Balance at ¥ July 2019
Prafitf {lose) atiribulable to membars of the Corporation

Balance at 30 June 2020

201139

Balance at 1 July 2018
Profitf (loss) abtributable 1o members af lhe Carperation

Balance at 30 June 2019

Retalned
Earnings Total
£ ]

16,080,005 16,080,005
{719,497) 719,497}

15,360,508 45 380,508

Retainad
Earnings Total
$ $

16,320,092 16,320,082
(240,087) (240,087}

16,080,006 16,080,005

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Walgett Aborlginal Medical Service Limited

ABMN: 78 014 BA0 451

Statement of Cash Flows
Far the Year Ended 30 June 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from custamess

Recaipts from government grants
Payments t3 supplisrs and smployees
Intareat received

Net cash provided byfused in) gperaling activities

GCASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Procesds fram sale of praperty, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Met cash provided byi{used in} invesling activilies

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Progeads from Bamewings
Froceeds from finance lease fiabilities

Met cash provided byilused in) hnancing aclivities

Mel increaseddecreass) in cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of year

Cash and cash squivalants al end of financial year

2020 20149
Mota ] ]

1,328,618 1,003,032
8,704,058 8241 626
{10,182,720)  (%.229,558)
100,728 170,574

19 {48,516) 185,880
54,000 20,864
{2,887,045) {793, 278)
[2,B29,045) {702.4143

171,346 227,154

{190,550) 5

{19,204) 227,158

(2,896,766] {283,275)
£&,652,801 9082 078

g §,796,035 DEI2AM

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Limited

ABN: TE 014 394 451

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

The bnancial report covers Walgelt Aboriginal Medical Senvice Lirated as an individual entity, ¥YWalgett Abonginal Madical
Sarvice Limited is 2 not-for-profit Comporation, incorporated under tha Corporations Acl 2007,

Tha functional and pressnlation currency of ¥algetl Aboriginal Medical Sanvice Limited is Australian dollars.
Tha fingncial reporl was autherisad for issua by the Directors on 24 November 2020

Comparatives are consislent with prigr ygars, unlgss otherwisa stated.

1 Basis of greparation

The financial slatements are general purpose financial stalements that hava been prepared in aceordance with the
Aualralian Accounting Standards - Reduced Discloswre Requiremeants and the Austratian Chariies and Not-for-prefit
Commission Act 2012, The Corporation s & not-for-profit entity for financral reporting purposes under Australian
Accounting Standards,

The financial slatements have been oreparad on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs, The amounds
presented in the financial repert have bean rounded to Lhe nearest dellar.

Australian Accounting Standards sel cul accounting pelicies that the AASE has concluded would result in financial
slatemants containing ralevant and raliable information abouwt Iransactions, events and conditions. Matedal accounting
polivigs adopted in the preparation of these Arancial statements are presented below and have been consiatantly
applisd unfess otherwise stated.

2 Summary of slgniflleant accounting policies
{a) Revenue recognitfon

The Corporatian has applisd AASE 15 Revenue from Contrasts with Custamers using the cumulative effective
method. Therefore, the comparative information hias not been restated and continues to be presented under
AASE 118 Revenue, Mo impact is shawn in relation to tha initial adoption of ASSE 15 as the Directors have
assessed that there is no matenal difference in the result of the Corporalion between applying AASE 118
Revenue and AASR {5

In apeordance with AASE 15 revenue conhinues Lo be recognised when cantrol of the goods and services has
tranaferrad to the cuslomears. For such lransactions, this is the peint in time when the goods are delivered o the
customers or the services ara received by customers.

Receivables are recognised when items are delivered aor services received, as at this point consideralion is
uncengditicnal since only time needs to pass bafore paymant of that cansideratian is due.

Rendering of sarvices

Revenue in relation Lo rendering of senvices is recognised depending on whether the outcome of the service
can be eslimated reliably. If the outcoma can be eslimated reliably then the stage of completion of the service is
used to datarmine the apprapriate laved of revenue o be recognised in the penacd. I the outcome cannol be
refigbly estimated then revenue is recegnised to the extent of expenses recognised thal ane recoverable,

Revanue from training servicss is ganerally recegnised once the training has been delivered.
Celebrating over 30 years of Service siuce 1956
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Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Limited

ABH; T8 074 590 451

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2 Summary of slgnificant accounting policies (conlinuad)

{a)

{b)

{<)

Revenue racognilion {continuad)
Grant ravenue

Where grant income arises lrom an agresment which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific
performance obligations then the revenus is recognised when eontral of gach performance obligations is
satisfied,

The performance obligations are vared based on the agreemenl.

Each performance obligation is considerad to ensura that The revenue recagnition reflacts the tranafer of canlral
and within grant agreaments there may be some performance obligations whera control lransfers at a paint in
time and olhars which have contineous transfer of control over tha life of the conlract,

Where contral is transfemred ovar time, generally tha input methods being either costs or time incorred are
deemed to be the mast appropriate methods ta refect the rensfar of henafit.

Interest revenus

Interest revenue is recognised using the effeclive interest rate mathod.

Other (ncome

Oiher income is recegnised on an accruals basis when the Corporation is entitled to it
Meome tax

The Corporgtion has besn granted an exemplion from income tax under seclion 50-20 of the ncome Tax
Assessitesd Aol 1887, The exampt status of the Corparation applies indefinitely or until such time as a change
in circumstances warrants & review of the exempt status.

Goods and services tax (G3T)

Revenue, expenses and assels are recognised net of lhe amount of goods and services tax (G5T) except
whare the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) In thesa
circumalances tha GST is recognised 85 pan of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as par of an item of tha
BXPEASE.

Recevablas and payable are stated inclusive of GST. Tha net amount of GST recovarable from, or payabls to,
the ATO is included with ather receivables or payables in the statement of financial posilicn.

Cash flows in Lhe statement of cash fows are included on 3 gross basiz and the GET mmﬁonant of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from. or payabla ta, the ATO is classified as
operaling cash flows,

Celebrating over 50 years of Seruice siuce 1956
Funded by: Federal Dept of Social Services — National Indigenous Australians Agency
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Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Limited

ABR: T8 014 330 451

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2 Bummary of significant accounting policies {continved)
{d})  Proparty, plant and aguipmant

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried a8t cost less, where applicable, any accumulated
deprecration and impairmeant.

In the event the carrying amount af plant and equipment is greater than its estimeted recoverable ameunt, the
carrying amount is writben down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount and impairment losses ane
recegnised in the statement of comperahensive income, A formal assessment of recovarable ameount is made
when impatrrmeant indicators ara presant.

Subsequent costs are included in Lhe asset's canying amount of recognised as a separate assst, as
approprate, only when it 13 probable that fulure economic benefits assacigled wilh the item will flow to the
Corporatien and the cost of the iterm can be measured refiably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
o tha statemaent of comprehensive income during the financial pedcd in which thay are incumed,

Land and bulldings

Land and buildings are measured using the cost modal.
Plant and equipment

Piant and equipment are measuned using the cost model.
Dapraciaticon

Buildings iz depreciated on 3 sirasght-line basis over the assels usefut life to the Corperation, commencing
whan the asget is ready for use,

Plant, equipment and mator vehicles is depreciated on a reducing balance basis over lhe assats useful life to
lhe Carporation, commenging whean the asset is ready for use.

The depraciation rales used for each class of deprectable aszat are shown below:

Fixed asset class Depraciation rata

Buildings 25% - 10%
Flant and Equipment 4 5% - 40%:
Muoter vahicles 20% - 25%

At the end of each annuzl reporting pericd, the depraciation method, useful life and residua! value of sach assset
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively 2s a changs in estimate.

Celebrating over 30 years of Service siuce 1956
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Walgett Aboriginal Madical Service Limited

AEN: T8 D14 530 451

MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2 Summary of significeant accounting policies [continued)

(e}

Financlal Instrumeants

Financial instruments are recogrised initially on the dale that the Gorporalion becomes party to the contractyal
provisions of e instrurmenl. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date the Gorporation commits ilself to
eithar the purchase or sala of Ihe asset.

Financial instruments {axcept for lrade receivablas} are initially measured at fair value plus fransaction costs,
excapt whers Lhe instrument is classified at "fair velue thiowgh profit or loss” in which case transaction costs are
expensed to proft or loss immediataly.

Trade recaivables are mitially measured at the lransagtion prica.
Firancial assats

Financigl assats are subsequently measured at:

. amorlised cast, or

. fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial assels comprising cash and cash equivalents, lrade and elher recaivables and intarest bearing
deposils are subsequently measured at amorlised cast a5 they meet the following eondilions:

- lhe financral assels are managed salely to collect contractual cash flows; and

’ lhe contractual terms wilthin Lhe financial assels give rise 10 cash Mows that are solely paymenls of
principat and interest on (he principal amoun! oulstanding on specified dates.

Dargoagmbion of inancial assels

A financial asset is derecognised when the Corperation's contractual rights o ils cash flows expires, or the
asset is transferred in such a way that all the risks and rewards of ownership are substanbially transferred.

All of the follawing criteria need Lo be satisfied for dereccaniion of a financial asast.

. the right o receive cash flows from the asset has expired or been transfarmad:
* all the risks and rewards of pwnership of the asset have been substantially ransferred: and
" tha Corparation no longer contrals the asset.

{In derecognition of a financial assel measured al amertized cost, the diffsrance between Lha assel's carrying
amaunt and tha sum of the consideration recaived and receivable is recognised in profl or loss.

On derecognilion of a financial assat classified under fair value through other comprehansive income, the
cumulativa gain ar loss previously accumulated in the financial asset reserve is nat reclassified to profit or loss,
But is transfered to retainad earnings,

Celebrating over 50 years of Seruice siuce 1956
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Summary of significant accounting pellcles (continuved)

{e)  Financial ingtruments (conilnued)

Financal liakilities
Financial liakilities ara subssquently measurad at amortised coats using the effectiva interest method.

The effective interest methed iz a methed of caledlating the amodised cost of a debt instrument and of
allogating inlerest expense in profit or loss over Lhe refevant paried.

The effeclive intzrest rale is the internal rate of relumn of the financial asset or inancial liakility, that is, it is the
rate lhat exactly discaunta the eslimated fulure cash flows through the expecled lifg of the instrurment to the net
carrying amaunt abinitial recognition.

Derecogrilion of fitancial fabiities

A lTabitity is derecognised when it is extinguished {ie. when the obligation in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires), An exchange of an existing financial liability for 8 new one with substantially meodilisd
lerms, or 8 subslantial modification o the temms of a financial liabitity, is lreated as an extinguishmant of the
gxisting hakility and recegnition of a new financial ability.

The diffarence between the carying amaunl of the financial liability derecognised and Lhe consideration paid
and payable, incfuding any nan-cash assels wansferred or ligbilities assumed, is recognised in prohit or loss.

Impairment

The Carporation recognises a3 loss allowance for expected credit lossas on financial assels that are measurad
at amorised cost

A loss allowanse is not recognised for investments measured at fair valug through olther comprehensive
incoma

Fecagmition of expacfed cradil 1osses in financial statements

At each repering date, the Corporation recocgmsas the movernent in the 1055 allowance as an imgairment gain
ar lass in the statement of comprehenaive incame.

The carrying amaunl af financizl assets measwred at amorlised cost includes the loss allowances relating lo that
asaet,

Fmancial assets measured at fair value through olther comprahensive ingome are recognised at fair valus with
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensiva income. The amaurt in relatien to change in credit risk
is lransfamed from other comprehensive incorme to profit or tess at the end of the reporting perizd,

i Impalrment of asseis

Al the end of each reporting peried tha Corporation determings whether there is an evidence of an impaimment

indicator for tangible and intangib’e aszets. IF such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset,

baing the higher of the asset's far va'ue less costs to sell and value in usa, is compared to the assel's carrying

valug. Any excass of the assel's carrying value over its recoverabla amounl is expensed to the slalement of

comprehsnsive income.

Celebrating over 30 years of Service siuce 1956
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2

Summary of significant accounting policles (continved)

in

2]}

(h)

Impairment of assets [confinued]

Where it i not peszible to astimate the recoverable amounl of an individual asaet, the Corporation eslimates
the recaoverable amount of the cash-genarating unit to which Lhe asset belongs.

Impairment testing is performed annually for intangible assats with indefinite useful ives.
Cazh and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call wilh banks and other financial
instituticns, clher short-term highly quid investmenls with grigina! maturities of bvelve months or less, and bank
overdrafis, Bank overdrafts are shown wilhin shortterm barrowings in current liabifities on the statement of
financial position,

Laasas

At inception of a contract, the Corporalion assesses whether a lease exisls - e does the conlract convey tha
nght lo eontral the use of an identified asset for a perod of ime in exchange for consideration.

This involves an assessmant of whather,

. The contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be explicilly or implicitly identifiad within
the agreerment. If the supplier has a substantive substitution ight then tham i no identhed assat.

» The Compaoration has the right to obtain substantially all of the econcemic banefits fram the usa of lhe
asset throughout the peried of uss.

* The Comoration has the night to direct the use of the asset ie. decision making righls in ralation to
changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.

Lasses acgcouniing

The non-lease compenents included in the lease agreement have been separated and are recognised as an
exXpensd g5 ingurrad,

At the lease commencement, the Corpaoralion recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease hability far
the fease lerm. The lease term includes gxtension periods where the Corporation beleves it is reasonably
certain thal the oplion will be exercised.

The right-cfuse asset is measurad using the cost modsl whare cost on inilial recognition comprises of the
lease liability, initial direct costs, prepaid |ease paymenls, estimated cost of ramoval angd restaration less any
leazg incentives racaived,

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight line basis and assessed far impairmant
in accordance with the impairmant of assets accounting policy.

The lzase liabilty is initizlly measured at the present walug of e remaining lease paymenls at tha
commencement of the lease. The discount rata is the rate implicit in the lease. however whera this cannat be
readily determined then the Corporation's incremental bormowing rate is used.

Celebrating over 50 years of Seruice siuce 1956
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2 Summary of significant accountlag pollcTes (continued)
th} Leasas (continued}

Subsequenl lo initial recognition, the lease liability is messured at amortised cost using the effectve interest
rate melhod. The lease liability is remaasured whether there is a lease modification, change in estimate of the
lease lerm aof index upon which lhe lsase payments are based (e.g. GFIl) or 3 change in the Corporalion's
assessment of lease tarm.

Where the lease liability is remeasured, the right-of-use assel is adjusted to rafiect tha remeasurement or is
recorded in profit or [oss if (he carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zer.

Excepiions o fease accounting

The Corporalion has elected lo apply the excaplions to leaze acoaunting for both shor-lerm leases {je. leases
with & lesm of less Lhan or sgual ko 12 monlhs) and leases of low-value assats. The Corporalion racognises the
payments associaled with thase leasas as an expanse on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

{n Employes banafits

Frovision la made far The Corporation's liability for employee benefils arising from sendices rendered by
employess o the end of the raporking pericd. Employea benafils that are expeclad to be wholly seftled within
one year have baen measurad at the amounts expected to ke patd whan the liability is settled. Employee
banafits payable later Ihan one year have been measured al Lhe present valug of lhe aslimatad future cash
outkaws to be made for those benefits. In determining the liability, consideration is given to employes wage
Inereases and the probakility that the employea may nel satisfy vesting requiremeants.

TH Trade and othar payables

Trade and other payablas are camied at amartised cost and represanl the liabilities for goods and services
received by the Carparation during Lhe regorting paried Lhat remain unpaid at the end of the reparting paripd.
The balance is recegnised as a current liabilly with the amaunts normally paid within 30 days of recognitian of
the ligbility., Trade and other payables are inbally measured at fair value and subsegquantly measured at
amerlised cost using the effective interast methad

{k}  Adoption of naw and revised accounting standards

Tha Comparation has adopted all standards which bacame effactive for Lhe first time at 30 June 2020, the
adoplion of (hese standards has not caused any material adjusiments to Lhe reported financial position,
performances or cash low of the Comperation.

3 Critical accountlng estimates and judgements

The directors make estimates and judgemenls durng the praparation of lhese financial statements regarding
azzumptions akout current and fulure events affecting transaclisns and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the bast infomation avaitabla at the time of preparing the financial
statamants, however as additional information is knomen than the actual resulis may dffer from the estimates.

The gignificant estimates and judgentents made have been described below.
Celebrating over 30 years of Service siuce 1956
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3 Critlcal accountlng estimates and judgements (continued|
Key estimates - imgaliment property, plant and equipmeant

The Corporation assesses impaiment at the end of each reporing percd by evalualing conditions specific to the
Coiporalion thal may be indicalive of impaimment thiggers. Recoverable ameunts of relevant assets are reassassed
using yalve-in-use calculations which incorporate various Key assumptions.

Key estimates - employes benefils

For the purpesa of measurement, AASE 113; Empioyee Bonafits dofines obligations for short-term employes benelils
asz chligations expected o be seltled whaolly before 12 months aftar the end of the annual reporting pearied in which the
employees rander the relaled services. As the Corporalion expects that mosl employees will nel use all thair annual
leave entitlernents in the same year in which they are eamed or dunng the 12-month penod that follows, the directors
Believa that obligations for annual leave enlitlernents satisfy the defimtion of other long-term employes benefils and,
lherafore, are requirgd 1o be measured at the present walue of the sxpactsd future paymants to be made to
employess.

Celebrating over 50 years of Seruice siuce 1956
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4  Ravenuve and olherincome

{al Revenue from contlinvlng operailons

2020 2018
Note $ L3
Dantal reyenug 12,297 14,103
Doctar's fees 1,117,852 1,116,850
Govermment grants 8,710,254 8,063,407

9.540.500 9199 360

[[1]] Other Income

Rent recaived 52,935 61,010
Recovered expenses 15,126 28624
Intarast 400,728 iTHETR
MNet gain on dispesal of property, plant and eguipment 32 865 31186
Sundry income 2870 20,506

234,324 315205

&  Result fer the year

Tine result for the year inclodes the fallewing spacilic expenses:

Dapreciation and amariisation expense

- buildings S{ad 277,995 309 826
- planl and equipment Qia) 118,562 140,520
- miglgr vehicles e 236,733 140 566

633,290 G40.811

Employae beneflt expenssa

- empfoyes wages 4875511 £ 017 880
- mowemeant |n pravision for employes benafits 213,080 (4,363
- recruitment costs 46,058 160,401
- salary reimbursements {44,719) e
- staff training 83,673 ATFYT
- BUbsidies - (G0
- superansuation contrbutions 400,224 384 861
- workers compensation 142,445 T8RS0

5,486,272 4,704,552

Celebrating over 30 years of Service siuce 1956
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Cash and cash equlvalents

2020 209
Note - $
Cash en hand 59 Kiti)
Bank balancas 6,280,507 8,103,901
Shart-term deposits 615472 568,600

6,586 338 9682 8

[a} Reconcillation of cash

Cash and Cash eguivalents reported in Lhe statement of cash flows are reconciled o the equivalent items in the
slatement of financial position as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 6,855,338 0,843 501
Bank owerdraft i1 (100,303} -

6,796,036 9,582,801

Trade and other racaivables

CURRENT
Trade receivables 116,856 214,294
GST recsivate 132,434 35,845

244,255 250,139

The carrying value of trade receivables is considared a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term
nature of the balances

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reparting date is the fair value of each class of receivabla in Ihe fnancial
slatermeants,

Other assets

CLURRENT
Prepayments . 2311

- 2311
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8  Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings
At cost
Accumulated depraciation

Taotal land and buildings

Capital works in progiess
At cosl

Total capital works in preqress

Flant and equipmenl
At coslt
Accurmy|ated depraciation

Tutal plant and equipment

Maolor vehicles
At cost
Maotor Vehicles

Total motor vahicles

Total property, glant and eguipment

{2} Movemants in ¢arrying amounts

2020 2019
% 5
10,296,320 10,137,853
(3,580,636} {3402 541)
6,615,654 6,735 312
3,913,370 -
3143370 =
2,571,125 2538510
{2.079,162) {1.9558,418)
491,873 580.002
1,041,663 1088927
{403,811) {412 054}
E37,752 675.853
10,858,779 789592 257

Mowemenal in the carrying amauonts for each class of proparty. plant and equipment Betwaen Lhe beginning and

the end of the current financkal yaar:

Capital works  Land and Flant and Molor
in progress buildings efquipiment vehicles Taotal
$ $ 5 $ 5

Year ended 30 June 2020

Balance at the beginning of year - 6,739,872 583,435 676,862 g,000,1%0

Additisns 3113370 163,807 27,100 249,059 3,543,326

Disposals - . - (51,437} (51.437)
Dapreciation expenss . (277,995} (118,662} (238,733) (633,280)
Balanca at tha and of the year 3,113,370 6,615,684 491,873 537,762 10,858,778

Celebrating over 30 years of Service siuce 1956
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10 Trade and other payables

CURRENT

Trade payahles

Credit cards

Accrued expanses

FAYG withholding payable
Superannuation payable

2020 2019

$ $
653,002 250,222
5,620 3ETY
124,362 -
100,403 67,366
31,473 105,700
224,570 428 965

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-inlerest bearing and are nomally settled within 30 days. The carrying
value of Wade and cther payables is considared a reasanable approximation of fair value due to the shodterm nature

of the balanceas.

1 Borrowings

CURRENT
Bank averdraft

12 Empioyee benefits

CURREMT
Frovision for employee banefits

MOM-CURREMT
Provision for employes bensafits

13  Other liakilities

CURRENT
Unenpended government grants

14 Leases

100,303 .
100,303 -
675,014 462 169
579.014 4682 169

28,235 -

96,235 -
282,180 JB7 5713
382,480 S87.5673

The Corporation has applied AASB 16 using the medified retrospective {cumulative catch-up) melhod and therefore
the comparalive information has not been restated and conlinues W0 Be reported under AASE 117 and related

[nterpratations
Corporallon as & lessgse

Tha Corporation has leases over a range of meolor vehigles,

Celebrating over 50 years of Seruice siuce 1956
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14 Leases {continuved)
The Corporation has chasen nol to apply AASB 16 to leases ol intangible assels.
nfermation relaling lo the lzases in place and asscciatad balances and ransacliona are grovidad below.
Terms and conditions of feases

The Corporation leases moter vehicles with lease temms varying from 2 - 3 years. lhe lease payments are fixed during
the feaze term,

{a) Lease llabllities

2020 2019
L] §
CURRENT
Mator vahicle leases 173,301 192 505
173301 182 505
NON-CURRENT
Motor wehicle [eases 388,301 328,30
358,301 388,301
(&)  Malurity analysls
Minimum lease payments:
- it later than one year 195,295 215,100
- between one year and five years 411 287 411,287
- latar fhan & years . .
607,182 526,387
15 Capltal commitments
Contracted comrbmanis for.
Exercise therapy rocm
Contract sum 4,010,291 -
Less payments made (3,073, 162) .
945,129 .

Shopfront bulldings
Contract sum 1,249,54¢ S

Less paymeants made - -
1,243,546 -
2,183,675 -

Construction is underway of the mew devalopment which will house existing programs. The new developmant will
include consclidating ewisting children's pregrams, offering private spaces for client sarvices, a boardroom, meeling
areas and expansion of a health and fress area.

Celebrating over 30 years of Service siuce 1956
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Kay managemant persennel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons hawing authority and responsibility for planning, direcling and
controlling Lhe activities of tha Corpaoration, directly or indirectly, including any director fwhather executive or gtharwize)
of that Corparation.

The total remuneration paid to key management persannsl of the Corporation is $460,203,
Conllngencles
In the opinicn of the Directars, the Corporation did net have any contingengias at 30 Juna 2020 (30 Juna 2019 Nons}.
Related pariles
{a)  The Cerporation’s main related parties are as follows:
Key managemenl parsonne] - refer o Mate 16.

Other related parlies include close family members of key management personnel and enlities that are
controlled or significantly influenced by those key managemenl parsannegl or Lheir closa family members.

(B}  Transactlons with refaled parles

Transactions bebeseen related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions na maore favourable than
those available to olhar parties unless othenvise ataled.

There have been no ransactions with related parkas durng tha financial year,
Cash flow Information
{a]  Reconciliation of result for ihe year 1o cash flows from operating aciivities

Recanciliation of nat income Lo net cash provided by aperating activitias:

2020 2019
$ $
Profl for the year {719,497) (240087
Cash flows exclugad from profit atlibutable to operating activities
Mon-cash Aows in profit;
- depractation 533,290 E40.911
- net {(gain)’less on disposal of invesbments {32,665) (31,186
Changes in assets and liabiitiss:
- {increaze)idacreasa in trade and other receivables 844 (151,918
- {increase)/decrease in prapayments 2,211 -
- increase/{decreass) in incames in advance (5.393) 131,211
- increasalfdecieasa) in rade and olher payables (140,425) (156 268)
- increasel{decrease) in member shares - (340
- increaselfdecreass) in employes benafits 213,080 {4,343)
Cash flows from cperalions {48,515) 185,081
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20 Events occurring aftar tha reporling date
The financial report was authorised for issue on 24 November 2020 by the board of directors,

Mo matters or circumstances have arsen since the end of the financial year which significantly affecled or cauld
significanlly affect the aperations of Ihe Gorporation, the results of those eparations or the state of affairs of the
Carporalion in future financial years.

21 Statutory information
Tha ragistersd office and principal placa of business of the Corporation is;

Walgetl Aboriginal Madical Servica Limited
37 Pilt Strest
Walgatt NSW 2832

Celebrating over 30 years of Service siuce 1956
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Directora' Daclaration

Tha direclars of he Geiporathan declare tal,

. The firancial statemenls and notes, as set oyl oa gages 5lo 23, @@ In accordance wilh |he Avslatisn Charities and
Mol Forpralls Commission Act 2612 and:

8. comply wilh Austration Beooynting Standards - Reduced Dacloaure Raguispmants; ard

b give & lrue and fair view of the Ananda! pasition an 5t 30 Jure 2020 and of the parfemance kr tha yeer yrded on
Lhal data,

2. In tha dirgclors’ opiaion, thera are reascnatia grsunds (o baliayva that tha Corporatlon wil ba abie Lo pay ils debis as
and when Ihay become dus and payable.

Thia declaration is meds ln accordancs with @ ragowiion of the Board of Digetors.

olrector . YA ?E""*”l&’-—

\ Ay Furge

Dated 24 Movemrber 2020
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Independent Audit Report to the members of Walgett Aboriginal Medical
Service Limited

Repaort on the Audit of the Financial Repert
Oplnion

We have audited the financial report of VWalgel! Aboriginal Medical Service Limited {the Carparation), which compnses Lhe
statement of financial position as at 30 Juns 2020, the staternent of proft or loss and other comprehensive income, Lhe
statemant of ehanges in equily and the slalement of cash Rows for the year then ended, and noles to the financial
slatemends, including a summary of significanl accounting poficies, and Lhe directors' deglaration.

In our eplnion, he accompanying financial report of the Corporalion is in acoardance with Divisian 80 of the Australan
Chanlies and Nof-fer-profif Commigsion Acl 2012, including;

{iy giving a true and fair view of the Corporation's financial position as al 30 June 2020 and of its financial perfarmancs for
the year endad; and

tiiy complying with Australian Accounting Slandards - Reducad Disclosure Requirements and Division 80 of the Ausfrafian
Chartigs ang Mot-forprofils Commission Ragulation 2013

Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auslaalian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilittes undar those standards are
furlher described in the Avdilor’s Responsibiities for the Audit of the Financial Reporf seclion of our report. YWe are
independent of the Corporalion in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of he Carporations dct 2001
and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Elhical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountanls (tha Code) that are relevant Lo gur audit of the financial repert in Austealia. We have also lfilled
our gther ethical responsiilities in accardance with the Code.

We confirn lhal lhe independence declaralion required by Oivision B0 of Ihe Aovsirafian Chaniies and MNot-for-profif
Commission gl 2012, which has been given ko lhe directars of the Corporation, would be in Ihe same terms if given to the
directors 25 at the time of this auditar's repart.

Wa baligve that Lhe audil ewvidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide @ basis for our epinign,
Qthar Information

Tive directors are respansible For the ather infarmation. The other informiation obtained at the date of this auditor's raport is
imcluded in ihe duectors’ report, the detailed profit and loss slatement, and the deparmental lrading profit and loss
slatements, (but does notinclude the financial report and cur auditar's report thergon).

Qur cpinion on tha finangial report does not covar the ather information snd accardingly we do not express any fom of
assurance gonclusion thenegn.

In connaction with our gudit of Ihe financial repor, our responsibility is to read the othar infamalion and, in deing so,
consider whether the other informalion is materially inconsistent with the financial repert or our knowledge ehlained in the
gudil ar otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Wellinglon O Dubba OHice Gllgandra Sice
1 Sywift Btreest 112-115 Do~ ng Stra=t 35 e shrest
FO Box 42 FrBox 4 PO o 109
W g hon b 2330 Moo NEW PR3 CHigondro MW 2827
102 5845 2177 T2 4384 4474 TQ2 4847 2777 AR
FOZ 2825 333 FO2 6845 3373 FO2 6847 2655 .
Laaiyim|led oy @a=re~e copracad
Charlered Accaunlants fegisiened Company Auditers Busingss Advisory vda 1me Pratesicn o Shordadi Legdaben
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Independent Audit Report to the members of Walgett Aboriginal Medical
Service Limited

If. based on lhe work we have pafommed on the ether information obtained prior lo the date af this auditor's repon, we
concluds hat there is & matedal misatatament of Lhis olher information, we are required to repart Lhat fact. We have nothing
ta report in this regard,

Rasponsibilities of Directors for the Flnancial Report

The directors of the Gorporation are respansitle for the preparation af the financizl report that gives a true and fair view in
aceordance with Auslralian Accounling Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requiremenls and the Auskralizn Chardlies and
Not-for-profit Commission Act 2072 and for such internal contral as the directors determing is necassary to enable the
preparation of the financial repont that gives a true and fair view and is free from matsria! misstatement, whether due to
fraud or grror.

In preparing the financial repor, the directars are responsible for assessing the Corporation’s ability to continue asz gaing
eencarn, diselosing, as applicabls, matlers related to going cencer and using the geing concern basis of accourting
unlass the directors either intend to liquidate the Corporation or 1o cease operations, or have no rgalistic altarnative but to
do sa.

Audltors Responsibllitles for the Audit of the Financial Report

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole |8 free frem material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar, and to issue an audilor's report that includes our opinien. Reascnable
assurance iz @ high level of assuranca, but is nat 2 guarantss Lhat an audit conducted in accordance wilh Australian
Audiling Slandards will atlways detect a material misstatement when it exisls. Misslatements can arise from fravd or enar
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregatle, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial repan.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Austratian Auditing Slandards, we exercise professional judgament and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the zudit We also:

* Identify and assess tha risks of malerial misstatement of the financial repart, whether dus to fravd or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidenca that is sufficient and appropriate
lo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuling from fraud is higher
lhan for ona resulting from error, &% fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenlicnal omissions, misrapresentations,
or the override of intarnal control,

. Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant o the audit in order to design audit procedures thal are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not far the purpese of expressing an opinion on {he efacivensss of the
Comparalion's internal control.

. Evaluate lhe appropriateness of accounting palicies used and the reasgnablaness of accounting estimates and
refated disclosures made by the direclors.

. Evaluate the owvarall presentation, structure and content of the bnancial raporl, including the disclosures, and
whethar the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in & manner that achieves fair
prasentation,
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Independent Audit Report to the members of Walgett Aboriginal Medical
Service Limited

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the gaing concem basis of aseounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a matedal uncerdainty exisls refated to events or condilions that may cast
significant doubt on the Comporation's ability 1o confinue as a going cancern.  [f we canclude that & matenal
uncerainty exists, we are required {o draw attenton in our auditor's repor to the related discfosures in the fingnoal
regart or, if auch discloaures are inadequate, ta medify our eplnisn. Qur conciugions ara based on (he audit evidanca
abtalned up to the date of cur auditer's repot. However, futurs evenls or conditions may cause the Gorparation o
cegse 0 conlinue as a gaing concern.

Wa communicale with the directors regarding, among other mettars, the planned scopa and timing of the audit and
s'gnificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal entral that we identify during qur audit.

Wie also provide the directars with & statement thal we have complied with relevant ethical requiraments ragarding
ndependanca, and e cammunicate with them all relatianshipa and sther mattars that may reasonably Ba thaught 1o baar
on olr independence, and whera applicable, ralated safaguards.

Ryan and Rankmora
Chartered Accountanis

%/’% CU/‘/*"’VM

Kevin Renkmore

RCA 16E6
i13-415 Darding Streel
Dubiro NSW 2820
Dated 24 Movernbar 2020
e R
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Disclaimer
For the Year Ended 30 Juna 2020

The addilional fnanclel data presented in the detalled prafit and loss stalement slarting on page 29 and the deparmantal
prafit and loss slalements starting an page 31 are in aceardance wilh the books and records of the Carparatian which have
baen subjectad to the auditing precedures applied in aur statutary audit of the Corparation for the yaar ended 30 June
2020, It will be agpreciated that our statutory audit did net cover all details of the adddional finangial data, Accaordingly, we
do ot express an opinfon o such financial data and we give no warranty af ascurasy ar reliabillty in respect of the data
provided. Meither the irm nar any mem&er ar employee of the firn underakes responsibility in any way whalseever lo any
person (cther than Walgett Aboriginal Medical Ssndce Limited) in respact of such data, incfuding any errors or omissions
thergin however caused.

Ryan and Rankmore
Chartered Accountants

WA/W 2t

Favin Rankmore
RCA 1556

113-116 Darling Strest
Dubbo NSW 2330

Daed 24 Novarnber 2030
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Introduction
The Finance and Administration Department has two main functions;

1) Maintain the Financial records of the organisation. This includes payroll, prepare the
accounts for audit and provide financial reporting to the funding bodies.

2) Provide Administrative support to WAMS. This includes but is not limited to; handling
accommodation and travel bookings for visiting specialists and staff, coordinating
external tradies, purchases, insurance schedules, Asset registers and other files.

Thanks to WAMS’ Auditors, Ryan and Rankmore, Kevin Rankmore, Michael McGann and their
audit team for all their hard work in getting the audit completed. | also give thanks to Mark Riley
for providing additional advice and support during the year.

| would like to acknowledge the following organisations for their ongoing funding;

e The Australian Government Department of Social Services

e The National Indigenous Australians Agency (formerly The Australian Government
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet)

e The NSW Ministry of Health

e The Western Local Health District

e NSW Rural Doctors Network

e Western NSW Primary Health Network

Staffin
Current Personnel:
e Mathew Baker Manager Finance
e Sally Barton Team Leader Administration
e Mellisa Timmins Finance Assistant
e Katherine Thurston Administration Assistant

Past Personnel:
e Amy Brown Administration Assistant

Overview

WAMS finished the year with total funding and other revenues of $10 million including
$1.11 million in Medicare. WAMS has spent over $2.88 million on new capital works and
equipment.

Walgett
It has been a challenging and busy year in Walgett. Work on the Shop Front Development

buildings commenced and the development and site works progressed well in spite of COVID
related difficulties, border closures and other travel restrictions.

During the three months of an extensive shut down we still managed a modest increase in our
Medicare Revenue over the previous year.

Celebrating over 30 years of Service siuce 1956
Funded by: Federal Dept of Social Services — National Indigenous Australians Agency
NSW Health — Rural Doctors Network — Western NSW Primary Health Network




Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020

With thanks to the Australian Government Department of Social Services and NSW Ministry

of Health we saw increases to our funding for Drought relief measures focussing on community
programs and mental health workshops. We also saw additional funding for COVID response
measures and while it happened in the 2020/21 financial year, we also received funding for the
commencement of a Respiratory Clinic and Point of Care COVID 19 testing based in Walgett.

WAMS made application to the NSW Gaming and Racing for yarning circle programs to focus
on the impact of gambling addiction. Towards the end of the reporting period we were advised
that our submission was successful and contracts were signed to commence the activities in
the new reporting period

We also lodged an application to the NSW Ministry of Health Capital grants for funding of
security fencing and structural works on the clinic building.

We are negotiating with Australian Government Department of Social Services on separating
our regional Healthy for Life activities for Brewarrina and Walgett.

We also worked with the National Indigenous Australians Agency to redesign the Murdi Paaki
Drug and Alcohol program and transition to a three year budget.

Brewarrina

Brewarrina also faced a challenging year. We were successful in lobbying the Australian
Government Department of Social Services for an additional $480,000 over the next three
years to meet the growth in health care services.

The department also provided funds to purchase a house in Church Street to expand our ability
to accommodate visiting staff. Additional land was also purchased for future expansion plans to
construct a purpose built facility.

We successfully lobbied the National Indigenous Australians Agency for management of the
SEWB funding.

Brewarrina also received additional funds for both drought relief activities and COVID response
strategies from The Australian Government Department of Social Services and The NSW
Ministry of Health.

Conclusion

Overall 2019/20 has been a difficult year with the region coming out of prolonged drought only
to face the challenges of COVID19. Walgett and Brewarrina have continued to face these
challenges with remarkable solidarity and level headedness for the most part.

| would also like to acknowledge the continuing support and advice of the CEO and that of
Mrs. Sally Barton and Mrs. Mellisa Timmins in our administration office. Thank you.

MATHEW BAKER
FINANCE MANAGER
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS REPORT
JULY 2019 TO JUNE 2020

Introduction

WAMS economic growth continues as we see the architectural drawings becoming a
tangible product. During the reporting period, sketches continued to be modified in
accordance with the placement of staff and their programs in the expansions being
constructed to accommodate the current businesses, as well as future development.
Personnel visited on-site at Adelaide to view the design and construction of the custom-
built units that will be transported to Walgett once. Moving towards the financial year,
DA lodged to WSC and initial construction of buildings off site commenced with likely
completion date during this period.

2019/20 was another year of extreme drought conditions and a severe reduction of food
production. In the first half of the financial year, many towns across New South Wales
experienced severe water shortages including a critical reduction of the river flows.
Walgett was one of many rural townships which have experienced such shortages, both
to the town supply, lack of rainfall, as well as the loss of constant flow from the two rivers.

As time moved into the 2019 festive season, the severity of the heat, along with the lack
of river flow, resulted in the quality of domestic tap water in question for consumption for
some people who were at risk with their chronic health issues. Packaged water was
kindly donated to Walgett along with our rural neighbours from many parts of the nation.
WAMS were a recipient of such donations. Staff were rostered for several months, each
Monday and Friday to assist in the distribution of the water to community members.
Having an increase of plastic water bottles, with no local recycling unit, created more
waste. WAMS along with other local agencies have lobbied to the local Shire Council for
a recycling unit to be available.

Restrictions were imposed on domestic and commercial water use for some nine months
of this period. At the beginning of the restrictions, WAMS were grateful to the Walgett
Shire Mayor and fellow Councillors for offering a short term arrangement to maintain the
produce of the community garden for delivery to clients with a chronic disease.

Additionally, the loss of Walgett’s only supermarket in June 2019, has created a
disruption of a steady food and water supply. For those who do not have access to
private transport are hamstrung in accessing fresh produce at a time of their
convenience.

COVD restrictions were announced at the end of March, which had an emotional and
social impact on our daily living. This public health issue was another stressor for people
living away from suburbia with unlimited access to domestic services. The resilience of
staff is recognised and appreciated as we now introduce ourselves to the unexpected
world of virtual meetings social distancing and sanitising at all times.

Some communities across the state were fortunate to be a recipient of the “Woolies
Basic Box” that was donated by Woolworths. WAMS distributed the boxes to residents
living in Walgett, Brewarrina, Collarenebri, Goodooga and Pilliga who were very
appreciative to receive the supplementary food parcels.
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Winds of Change (once more)

The Coronavirus, COVID 19, has changed the way we have operated overall in the last
quarter of this year. The likelihood of this arrangement shall continue in the next year.
Additional PPE was purchased, social distancing was a common practice and working
from home was practised.

The funds holder for Commonwealth funding of our sector has changed the cycle in
preparation for pending administrative transformations. ACCHO’s are being funded

in an interim arrangement for the next twelve months reporting period. They have also
undergone a name change, now being the Dept. of Social Services.

Additionally, at the last quarter of this period, the Department of Prime Minister and
Cabinet changed their name to the National Indigenous Australians Agency, a
commitment by the federal Aboriginal Affairs Minister, the Hon. Ken Wyatt. These two
changes have left local agencies somewhat bewildered and uncertain in regards to the
longevity of their respective businesses.

Commercial air services continue to be limited to our town and not cohesive to our
needs. WAMS have an arrangement with a charter company to transport BAMS and
WAMS personnel who transit from Dubbo. This private agreement assists us to convey
allied health personnel and visiting specialists to WAMS service area for the delivery of
comprehensive Primary Health Care to clients.

Quality

WAMS recently made a cultural, operational and social decision by moving from the
current accrediting agency to a place-based agencies that focuses on the philosophies of
local Aboriginal community controlled service delivery. Te Wana, was established in 2000
as a quality improvement programme for New Zealand primary health care and community
services based on the Australian community sector standards - CHASP then QIC and now
the Accreditation Alliance. The name Te Wana was gifted by a group of kaumatua
(Elders) and means to challenge yourself to be the best you can be.

Te Wana has now been adapted for both the New Zealand and Australian services and is
one of the very few programs with an emphasis on continuous improvement and cultural
capability with a specific Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander focus. Te Wana supports
organisations to reflect on and review their philosophy, governance, policies and practices,
service delivery, and their relationships with other providers, funders and wider community.

The month of December 2019 was confirmed for WAMS to undertake their next cycle of
accreditation. | wish to sincerely thank both Stephanie Pope, who has diligently guided
staff in improving the language of Policies and Procedures as well as overseeing the
necessary templates and reporting documents to be updated in alignment with the
necessary legislative changes for our overall operations.

Quality in Operation

The Strategic Plan is a document whereby our governance and operations is influenced
for daily, weekly, monthly and annual planning. The five key indicators of Corporate
Governance, Human Resources, Client Services, Financial Management, and
Community Consultation are the ingredients for our recipe of a productive business.
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While White Ribbon Australia ceased their operations at the end of the 2019 calendar
year, agencies continued to conduct community and promotional events about violence.
WAMS were involved in such activities and participated in community gatherings at
Collarenebri, Lighting Ridge and Walgett. We shall continue to promote the importance
of positive communications, respectful behaviours and understanding the definitions of
violence at staff in-services and future staff development workshops.

Representing WAMS

| continue to hold membership on the following committees which enable me the
opportunity and good fortune to espouse the critical issues in our towns, whilst also
celebrating our successes and promoting our evolution.

Bila Muuiji Aboriginal
Health Service
Incorporated

Aboriginal Health and
Medical Research
Council of NSW

NSW Rural Doctors
Network

Western Primary
Heath Network -
member of Aboriginal

Advisory Committee

NACCHO offered me the chance to become a member of the National Water Reform
review, representing AMS’s across the nation, and bringing to the attention the many
social and lifestyle issues of water quality, river management, household water use, etc.

Visiting WAMS

From understanding the impact of drought, enquiring about the social resilience of the
community and the reduction of general services due to the constant financial hardship
are an example of questions posed to WAMS. To local people, | believe that such
questions are not always seen as a ‘problem’, but more as a measure of the resilience
and innovativeness we have to sustain ourselves in these times. | often wonder

Walgett has been profiled as a locality to visit by many politicians, bureaucrats and
interested agencies during this reporting period. Minister Pavey and State member,
Roy Butler and departmental bureaucrats, were some of the people who took the time
to meet, to converse, to understand the barriers we experience and appreciate our
achievements.

Quality in Culture

The NAIDOC theme of 2019 was “Voice, Treaty, Truth”. To pay recognition to NAIDOC
and also our identity as Aboriginal people, staff from BAMS and WAMS accompanied by
the Directors, spent time on the river. They gathered together for a meal as well as
listened to local Aboriginal people recount their history growing up in the region, and
relaying stories told to them from their ancestors on life as it was back then.

Corporately, WAMS are in the process of designing a PowerPoint presentation honing

in on the history of WAMS as well as the cultural milestones of our town. We have also
commenced signs to be displayed in language that are relevant to our business, e.g. to
welcome, names of body parts, titles of staff roles.

The Aboriginal (snake) puzzle continues to be on loan for government and non-
government departments to utilise the education tool as a cultural footprint and historical
measure of our life as we know it. Visitors are often shown the wall display of local
history which depicts significant periods as a nation alongside of important milestones in
our town.

The Board are in the process of tendering for local artwork that will be used as their
corporate uniform for clothing, resources and all manners of advertising materials.
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Collegiate Working Arrangements

Business arrangements that are either formalised by an Memorandum of Understanding,
a Service Level Agreement, or with an agreed commitment to working together for the
greater good of WAMS service area are both encouraged and welcomed. We have
signed with agencies that are local, regional and state entities, which believe will
complement the work we undertake for our operations.

At a local level, WAMS are extremely grateful to the Dharriwaa Elders Group (DEG) who
have advocated for WAMS on many aspects of our business. From deriving philanthropic
support for the Community Garden, to advocating for additional resources for operations.
DEG are sincere in their commitment to expanding the economic development of WAMS
through the production of fresh produce for clients with a chronic disease. It is
anticipated that the next stage of the garden development will invoke cooking classes,
expansion of recipients of the produce, composting and a propagating program.

Children in Out of Home Care

The Tri-partite Agreement between FACS and Western Local Health District offer a
foundation for the provision of an all-encompassing service to the child in need and their
families.

Integrated Care Strategy program

This program offers continuing care for a child’s first 200 days of life and support for the
family, which is integral to the cognitive and social development of the early growing
years.

Healthy for Life

The Too Deadly for Diabetes program has achieved many successes for local people.
We were pleased to view on social media the triumphs of local people and others from
nearby communities relate their weight loss journeys and improvement in the mental and
general well-being.

Another element of this program is the participation of local football teams in the NSW
Aboriginal Health Knockout. Men and women compete as a “community” team against
other towns, to be the recipients of prize monies (first, second and third) that can be
used for physical activity programs or equipment in the respective winners towns.

Regional meetings for the program are hosted across Brewarrina, Bourke, Walgett and
Orana haven. The gatherings offer staff to discuss their local activities, network with like-
minded people and plan events to accommodate clients.

Health Checks — referral pathways

Health Checks are conducted according to an annual calendar (both confirmed by
WAMS and the respective schools) that allow a planned approach to provide
comprehensive screening in all aspects of an individual’s life, e.g. chronic diseases,
hearing, oral health, vision, diet and exercise.

(NSW) Aboriginal Health and Medical Research Council (AHMRC)

The AHMRC have now moved their premises to the Aboriginal Health College at Little
Bay. This decision will reduce the financial impositions of renting in Sydney’s CBD and
also having property for academic training. The College has commenced offer RTO
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courses to ACCHO members as well as other agencies who wish to enrol in such
courses.

BAMS and WAMS are members of the state lobby group for ACCHO’s. The advocacy
of the AHMRC is vital to networking with state national partners working in health and
health-related programs. Mr Phil Naden was appointed as Chairperson at the latest
members meeting. The regions were designed into four sections of NSW, with two
Directors in each region. The BAMS/WAMS region has ten other ACCHO members.

| was the second person, along with Phil, appointed as a Director in this region.

Bila Muuji Aboriginal Health Service Incorporate (Bila Muuiji)

Members of the regional consortia are from ACCHO'’s based at Bourke, Brewarrina,
Coonamble, Dareton, Dubbo, Forbes, Orange, Walgett. The members continue to
collaborate with companies that have potential benefits for the members, their staff
and their clients.

The Chairperson, BAMS Manager and CEO attended the members meeting to listen to
the Constitutional changes that are being proposed, as well as the design of the skills-
based Board. The re-design of governance to become a skills based board will stand the
consortia in good stead to have qualified professionals who are not only Aboriginal
people but carry credentials that will give sound governance of the business.

National Aboriginal Community Controlled health Organisation (NACCHO)

NACCHO have strongly advocated for the identity of the sector and the unique industry
of being a locally-governed and locally-operated service. NACCHO lobby with a range of
agencies which focus on the social determinants of health — e.g. housing, employment,
education and economic progress. These elements are crucial to an individual’s
wellbeing and human development.

Community Events/Health Promotion Programs

To promote staff competencies, encourage community involvement demonstrates the
commitment of our organisations footprint with partnering agencies. Listed are the many
meetings that staff attend when possible.

AECG SRG School Awards Walgett Show

St Joseph’s Primary | Local High and Community Drug and | LEMC

School Primary Schools Alcohol Team (commencing March
2020 re COVID)

Walgett Shire Walgett Shire Council | White Ribbon Walgett Shire Council

Council NAIDOC Reconciliation Australia Sorry Day

Bila Muuji members | ANZAC Day Domestic Violence Local Interagency

WAMS and BAMS have a Facebook page offers information on events being held,
internal activities of the business and current updates. Radio announcements, the local
newspaper, phone messaging and local broadcast emails are additional avenues of
promotion. Visitors receive “WAMS Packages” that include the Annual report, Strategic
Plan, Profile of Service, Pictorials of report to demonstrate all aspects of works that were
undertaken.

We have communications to all Schools for the scheduling of health care programs,
student workshops and significant community events. Two mental health workshops
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were conducted during this period of reporting. Mr Joe Williams spoke on his personal
experiences and sharing his trials both in the sporting world, the media and his family.
He presented community sessions which focussed on the importance of living a healthy
lifestyle and managing good mental health.

“Keeping our community safe”, the mantra of Coronavirus was a message that was
practised. We experienced barriers of operation during COVID 19. Staff varied their
work roles and supported other local businesses in the health and social support of our
residents. Delivering pharmaceutical supplies, assisting DEG in transporting fresh
produce to clients, conducting daily “visitors” program and assisting with supermarket
delivers are one of many ways we maintained contact with our residents and our clients.

Children’s Youth Week | Meals on Walgett Show ANZAC Day Breakfast Club
Day Wheels Cancelled due
to Covid

Seniors Dharriwaa Biggest Harmony Day NAIDOC Xmas Raffle
Week Elders Morning Tea celebrations

Group
Bitumen to Health Women’s Children’s Men’s Health International
Bulldust Checks Health Health Checks | Checks Women'’s Day
Festival (High Checks

School)

Staff — Recruitment
Another year of departures and welcome greetings. Goodbye and best wishes to;

Dr Paige Darlington Clinic EEN FCPHC RN D & A Worker
Cherin Singh Sharon Lowe Ricco Lane

Chronic Diseases Outdoor staff Community Garden

Manger Danielle Victor Murray Sophia Byers

Allen

The welcome mat was extended to;

Dr Keith Gleeson Dr Deborah Hough Kira McKay FCPHC RN
Loretta Weatherall AHW Gemma Roper, Dietitian | Joseph Gordon AHW BAMS

| extend my continued appreciation to senior Aboriginal Health staff who have acted in
management roles during absences of their incumbents, both in the Clinic and the
Chronic Diseases teams. Such commitment affirms their understanding of supporting
staff each day, directing work roles each day while at the same time meeting deadlines
in a timely manner and being responsible to external parties for their enhancement of
partnerships.

Staff — Recognition

It is always exciting to share with staff a milestone of their employment with WAMS.
Congratulations to the following staff who reached this achievement.

Twenty years Phillip Dowse

Fifteen years Chris Boney (BAMS)

Ten years Reg Rutene Sarah Dowse

Five years Nichole Kennedy Danielle Fletcher Dee Anna Nixon (BAMS)

At our Christmas celebrations, staff unanimously voted Cherin Singh as Employee of
the Year. Cherin’s role in the clinic, her accommodating manner to clients, mentoring
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of colleagues and versatility for the daily operations validate her understanding and
appreciation of her clinic role.

Staff — training and development

Staff are afforded the opportunity to expand and enhance their skill bases via annual
appraisals of the work. Some Aboriginal health Workers have formalised their training
to become Aboriginal health practitioners. Short course, tertiary education is but a
variety of such training that is offered.

Staff — students

Local senior school students are encouraged to experience work in our facility, across
clinic, dental, children’s service, community development and administration operations.

Medical and nursing students are scheduled each year to work both at BAMS and
WAMS primarily under the supervision and direction of the Doctor or the Nurse. They are
also encouraged to experience other aspects of the business and have been known to
spend time in other areas of operations as previously mentioned for local students.

Closing Comments

| am grateful for the ongoing expansion of businesses, the dedication of staff to clients
and their colleagues. My sincere thanks to the community who advocate for us, who
understand the internal struggles of living and working in isolation, accommodating social
changes and maintaining our operations. COVID shall dictate next year and we must be
prepared to maintain government regulations for our own survival.

The cusp of the new financial year will see WAMS becoming 35 in this industry, as shall
I. One cannot begin to explain how exciting this shall be. WAMS is strong, brave and a
true pioneer.

CHRISTINE CORBY, OAM
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGERS REPORT

JULY 2019 TO JUNE 2020

INTRODUCTION:

Recruiting qualified staff to Walgett and Brewarrina continues to be a challenge throughout
this reporting period. In my personal opinion it's primarily related to our location within the
State, additionally some could also say it's also because of our brief shortage of water and
the unexpected hot weather? Regardless of these factors, there continues to be a proactive
commitment to sourcing new staff, but nothing will beat employing local community staff from
across our service delivery footprint, which | strongly believe in - local jobs for local people.

As Human Resources Manager, my ongoing commitment is to ensure the whole
organisation continues to have a stable workforce in all areas. This will be an ongoing
challenge given Covid19 has really placed an ongoing range of restrictions on how we
recruit new staff and where they come from, and factoring in which State or Territory, or
even if they come from overseas, and the additional requirement to quarantine or self-isolate
for a period of time.

The additional flow-on effect for current staff is that this impacts everyone’s ongoing
professional development and limited opportunities for staff to attend external
conferences/forums/workshops to enhance their current skills. That being said, we have
been fortunate to have some training facilitators attend WAMS from non-Covid hotspots to
conduct the following training:

Cert IV in Leadership Fire Extinguisher Use 18t Aid and CPR GeneXpert for Covid19

and Management Point of Care Testing
Program

Early Childhood Oral Covid19 — Respiratory | 1,2 3 Magic & Emotion | Comply with Infection

Health eLearning Clinic Practitioner Coaching Prevention & Control

Program Policies and Procedure

During the Corvid 19 period staff were not able to travel externally for professional
development. This meant it was a time for staff to go on-line and complete their AMSED
training Modules. Completion of AMSED modules, along with staff Appraisals will support
and compliment any future applications for external training.

Again, | would like to express a continued thank you to all staff, including the Chief Executive
Officer and all WAMS Board of Directors for their continued commitment, diligence and
patience in progressing WAMS's vision.

WAMS has continued to provide ongoing professional health services to Walgett and wider
communities. Staff have continued to show their commitment each day to come to work and
improve the health outcomes for Community members throughout 2020 and the challenges
it has presented for all of us.
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GARDENING/CLEANING TEAMS:

The Gardening and Cleaning Team staff continue to work well throughout this reporting
period. Whilst we have some slight changes to staffing in both teams | sincerely thank each
of them for their continued diligence and commitment to get the job done.

Staff under my management:

GARDENING AND MAINTENANCE CLEANERS

Ernie Sands - Team Leader Karan Doolan - Team Leader
Beau Smith - Gardener Kerry Kennedy - Cleaner
Matt Dennis — Gardener Deborah Fernando - Cleaner

Deborah Russell - Casual

CARETAKER - GILBERT LODGE

Jenny Larkin until November then it was
covered by the Maintenance and Cleaning
team covered for the remainder of the year

CLOSING COMMENTS:

Thank you again for all your support throughout 2020. We have collectively worked through
a year like never before. | have every confidence that we will have many good news stories
to make up for this year. | sincerely look forward to sharing these with you throughout 2021.

GAVIN TYE
HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER

Celebrating over 30 years of Service siuce 1956
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SENIOR MEDICAL OFFICERS REPORT
JANUARY TO JUNE 2020

Introduction

This is my first Senior Medical Officers report in my role since my commencement on 2 January
2020. The past six months has been an interesting induction for me into WAMS, and | have
adapted and modified my position according to the constant changes in service delivery.

| had inherited this role from Dr Page Darlington who was well respected by staff and patients.
| have been significantly challenged since starting the position. The most notable being the
COVID 19 Pandemic sweeping the world in early 2020. WAMS have had to adapt to cater for
the impact of this epidemic on the local community; its patients and the organisation.

| have worked closely with the Chief Executive Officer and other senior management personnel
to ensure that we have:
e Protect patient and staff.
e Prevent the closure of the organisation.
¢ Provided clinical and social assistance to clients within the WAMS footprint.
e Participate in the Local Emergency Management Committee in a representative and
skills base capacity.
o Establish a static and mobile respiratory clinic for the region.
e Establish procedures and policies regarding pandemic management.
e Establish telehealth services to increase access for patient in isolation and remote
areas.
e Liaise with external organisations at a regional, state and national level to form
collaborative relationships;
o Commonwealth Health
NSW Health
Centre for Aboriginal Health
NACCHO
AHMRC
PHN
WLHD

O O O O O O

| have been involved in reviewing several of the Policies that require modification;

e Client or Practitioner Refusing Treatment or Advice.
¢ Drug of Addiction Policy and Patient Contract

Workforce

A significant priority for me is to look of recruitment of more permanent medical work force
rather than relying on Locum services. This should in theory improve continuity of care for
patients and reduce economic impact employing these Doctors.

WAMS currently has two fulltime General Practitioners, Dr Debra Hough and myself. We are
both registered as GP Supervisors with GP Synergy, the General Practice Training Provider
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responsible for Registrars placement in NSW. We have assisted BAMS by filling in gaps where
Locums were not able to attend due to Covid19 restrictions s well as vacancies during this time.

We are currently seeking to employ at least one GP Registrar who will attract salary support
(financial assistance). However, | think it will be difficult to fill, given the shortages of Registrars
V’s placement in the state. We have also registered with the Regional Vocation Training
Scheme for overseas trained doctors as an alternative. This program does not attract salary
support for the trainee.

Meetings
| have attended two Board of Directors meetings. The first meeting was focused on COVID 19

concerns regarding sick leave and working from home. The Board of Directors approved these
measure to last until the emergency has been declared over by the NSW Department of Health.

The second meeting discussed concerns regarding medicare billing given the pandemic. It was
decided to set KPI’s that were achievable to produce a report that the Board could monitor the

progress of billings. The Directors were also advised that Medicare billing is impacted by many
issues and that these KPI’s are a guide only.

| have attended Senior Personnel meetings on a monthly basis which is updating Senior
Personnel on last month’s progress and what is planned for the next month.

Commencing March, staff have been attending daily morning meetings via zoom. This allows
an update for the day’s events, to plan together thereby ensuring staff awareness of the ever
changing restrictions due to the Pandemic.

We have been providing regular clinics to Goodooga and Pilliga, which is well received by
the community. Goodooga clinics have two regular doctors from Sydney. At the closing of this
financial year, we resorted to telehealth clinics due to COVID 19 which prevent travelling

It is expected Dr Keenan and Dr Young will recommence their regular services in Goodooga
next month. This will depend if we are not impacted by a second COVID 19 outbreak.

Closing Comments
Thank you again for all your support during my first reporting period at WAMS and | look
forward to sharing good news stories and staff achievements with all of you in the future.

Dr Keith Gleeson
Senior Medical Officer

Celebrating over 30 years of Service siuce 1956
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Overview THERAPY

Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service

Raymond Terrace Therapy provides Allied Health services under Outback Therapy to Walgett
Aboriginal Medical Service. These services include Physiotherapy, Occupational Therapy and Speech
Pathology.

The 2019-2020 period has certainly been an eventful period. With Walgett and surrounds
experiencing the effects of harsh weather; drought, bush fire and water shortages. With early 2020
the Coronavirus global pandemic and the introduction of COVID19 social restrictions impacting the
community and our nation.

Coronavirus

With the COVID19 restrictions, this affected the ability of service providers to partake in usual
outreach service models in which reduce gaps in services for communities like Walgett who rely on
external stakeholders to increase capacity and access. It is these communities that are already
vulnerable and face adversities to health and access to services, compounded with COVID19, were at
greater risk of health decline.

Raymond Terrace Therapy was able to provide a modified service provision from March 2020 to
ensure WAMS clientele and the wider Walgett community continued to have access to services
despite the restrictions. The team was able to develop resources for age specific groups. These
resources were released and delivered to various group for home programs and engagement.

The provision of our service was dramatically modified to accommodation the provision of
Telehealth services on a weekly basis. Utilising the allocated funding and modifying the service from
one week a month to a more frequent (2 days weekly) service. This provided resilience and
reassurance that these essential services were still available and accessible.

The uptake initially was challenging, as it was a brand-new era, with regular meetings with Healthy
for Life management and Chronic Disease team, telehealth individual services flourished.

With social restrictions reducing in July, our service was adaptive to resume face to face service
provision with a changed model of service. Although services have resumed to the new normal, we
are conscious that COVID19 will continue to haunt us until a vaccine or it’s eradication. Raymond
Terrace Therapy and it’s representatives work within a framework that promotes effective infection
control, and strategies to reduce the risk of spread of infectious diseases. Our Pandemic and
infection control policies have been updated. In adapting the measures, our service is able to
provide direct service to Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service, until otherwise deemed unsuitable. We
are ready to resume telehealth in the event our service is unable to provide direct services.
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Speech Pathology THERAPY

Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service

Allied Health Therapist

e Klint Goers (Consultant Speech Pathologist) July to Dec 2019
e Vanessa Purcell (Speech Pathologist) Jan 2020 to current

Service provision 2019 - 2020
e Telehealth
e Paediatric services clinic, in school, home programs and in home
e Speech, language and literacy; assessment and recommendations
e Palliative care
e Clinic, community and home consultation
e OQutpatient chronic disease services
e Mealtime management
e Referrals to other services
e Increasing use of Aboriginal Health Workers
e Resource development: Culturally sensitive Activity packs, assessments, resource
e Liaising with and supporting local services; such as schools, preschools, LHD
e Liaison with project officer of Dharriwaa Elders Group

Initially Klint Goers established the program developing a model of service to provide speech
pathology for individual consultation and supporting local community needs and partnering with
local organisation as representation of WAMS. Community groups include preschools and schools in
the local area. In 2020 Vanessa joined our team and continued Speech Pathology service delivery for
WAMS. Klint has moved to a Clinical Supervisor and works with Vanessa in a supervision role to
continue both her growth as a speech pathologist & guidance over WAMS Speech Pathology service.

In response to COVID19 restrictions Vanessa was able to develop a high standard of home activity
packs for different age groups. These resources were culturally and age appropriate, as the COVID
pandemic took hold, these resources were used to develop speech and literacy skills within the
home. The resources were designed to be used within the home and clinic.

Vanessa continues to adapt the speech pathology service to meet community needs. With paediatric
speech services being the greatest area of need, we now seeing a growing need to provide speech
pathology services across the lifespan. For example, earlier in the 2020 Vanessa supported a
palliative patient through telehealth with the family, carers and Aboriginal Health Workers. This
patient presented with swallowing and communication difficulties. A multidisciplinary approach was
required. Vanessa was able to work closely with the family and collaboratively with the
multidisciplinary team. The patient’s needs were met with regards to end of life care and quality of
life was maximised. The rapport and trust in the community has been strengthened through this
process and we are seeing more referrals in this scope of practice.

Vanessa is passionate to increase individuals’ capacity both developmental and academically.
Through rapport and community engagement, Vanessa has liaised with the local schools and
provided recommendations for literacy programs, for example the phonics evidence-based Fitzroy
literacy program.
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The future of Speech Pathology at WAMS THERAPY

Speech Pathology continues to be in high need for Walgett and also the surrounding communities
that are serviced by WAMS. We are aware of the need for speech pathology services in more remote
areas serviced by WAMS, such as Goodooga and Collarenebri. Vanessa has begun to provide services
in both of these areas. It is a balancing act to navigate service provision for those who are most in
need and the best use of resources (Therapist time). We are working collaboratively with WAMS
staff to organise local outreach days for assessment and follow up therapy to service cluster groups
of referrals on the Speech waitlist.

The waitlist continues to grow and we are providing an adaptive model of service. The future of
speech pathology services will continue to develop over time. With the new WAMS facility to
become home to allied health services, we envision a more streamlined service delivery, aiming for
more outpatient consultation to best utilize therapist time. Being in close proximately with
Goonimoo and Mums & Bubs programs will further strengthen connections and relationships with
the community and access to paediatric allied health services.
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Occupational Therapy THERAPY

Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service

Allied Health Therapist

e Samara Unwin (Occupational Therapist)

Service provision 2019-2020

Telehealth
e Chronic disease management
e Palliative care
e  Working with various stakeholders internal and external
e Liaising with and supporting local services; such as MacKillop, schools, preschools, LHD
e Increasing use of Aboriginal Health Workers
e Paediatric — in school, home programs and in home
e Equipment prescription
e Home modifications and environmental reviews
e Clinic, community and home consultation
e OQutpatient chronic disease
e Functional assessments and recommendations
e Upper limb management
e Fatigue management
e Funding applications
e Referrals to other services
e Multidisciplinary approach

Samara’s reflection “The Occupational Therapy program was initially started with the focus on
paediatrics, but as it has grown and become integrated into the community as we’ve adapted and
diversified to meet the community’s needs as a whole. There is such a need within this local
community that | think we’ve done a great job in being open and flexible to meet those needs.
With a varying scope of practice and adaptation to practice, the community is well serviced.”

The is limited access to occupational therapy services in the community, with the Lightning Ridge OT
service provider on Mat Leave and a new OT service at Walgett LHD. The community need
Occupational Therapy is more evident with the communities awareness of what this service can
offer being more strengthened. WAMS OT service continues to adapt to local need.

The future of occupational therapy at WAMS

Samara’s reflection “/ would hope that with more community awareness of the Occupational Therapy
role and over time greater acceptance, that the role becomes more proactive and less reactive, that
we will be able to assist those who have the need effectively and timely.”

The waitlist continues to grow and we are providing an adaptive model of service. The future of
Occupational Therapy services will continue to develop and adapt to community need.
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Physiotherapy THERAPY

Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service

Allied Health Therapist

e Robert Martinez (Physiotherapist)

Service provision 2019 - 2020

Walking program
e Telehealth
e Cardiorespiratory rehabilitation “ Heart Matters”
e Chronic and complex disease management
e Musculoskeletal conditions assessment and intervention
e Acute conditions
e OQOutpatient chronic disease
e Palliative care
e Complex and chronic pain management
e Team leader for Allied health care team
e Increasing use of Aboriginal Health Workers
e Meetings with management

With physiotherapy being the most established service provided to WAMS, the program continues
to attract more referrals. Having 2 cardiac rehab programs running concurrently every Friday.

2020 has seen an additional day, from two days of outreach physiotherapy service to 3 days direct
and 2 days remote per month. The additional direct day was required to adapt to increasing demand
and referrals for complex needs, including palliative care, increased outpatient capacity and
provision for future inclusion of new gym facility and programs. The addition of the remote service
provision allows services to be offered via telehealth, patient follow up and team liaison, which in
turn strengthens the patient journey if accessing high quality health care services.

The future of physiotherapy at WAMS

The new facility will be welcomed with providing the means to expand services to include more
group and individual therapy services.

Robert Martinez and Annie Dean (AHA) have been collaborating with sourcing new programs that
will meet community needs. With “Stepping on” a falls prevention program as a desired program to
be offered at WAMS. The program requires facilitators to be trained, although with the COVID
restrictions, the training is on hold and we are closely watching this space.

Continue provision of Cardiorespiratory rehabilitation and scope to increase participants.
Continue to provide individual physiotherapy services for acute and chronic health, pain and
disability.

Continue to oversee allied health programs and provide recommendations for service provision
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BREWARRINA REPORT
JULY 2019 TO JUNE 2020

Introduction

WAMS continues to maintain the arrangement with DoH to enable the community of Brewarrina

to access quality health care by continuing to manage the operations of the Brewarrina Aboriginal
Medical Service (BAMS). The BAMS team includes not only qualified and professional staff but also
many visiting specialists, allied health professionals and contractors who all work together with a
shared goal to improve the overall primary care health outcomes of the local and surrounding
communities.

BAMS continues to work toward improvement in providing excellence in quality of service provided
by the team and is recognised through being accredited with AGPAL Quality in Practice which will
be under review in 2021. The BAMS team continued to strive toward improving their skills and
qualifications to provide professional health care services that are welcoming and culturally
appropriate for our clientele.

This reporting period was presented with unprecedented challenges with the impacts from the Covid
19 Pandemic becoming paramount in 2020. The way business operated dramatically changed with
the introduction of Covid screening, social distancing and deep cleaning becoming standard
practice. Unfortunately health outcomes where negatively affected for our community through
visiting services being cancelled or reliant on teleconferencing. However, attending welfare checks
to boost community spirit, the distribution of food parcels and activity packs assisted in boosting
morale. BAMS staff where very adaptive and complying to assisting in supporting community
members whilst operating within the NSW Health restrictions and guidelines.

Visiting services include:

General Practitioner medical clinic locum service

o 5 days a week

o Psychologist — Social Emotional Well Being program, 2 days a week

o Drug and Alcohol counsellor fortnightly

o Sexual Health clinic quarterly

o Women’s Health Clinic 6 weekly

o Podiatry fortnightly

o Ear Nose & Throat Specialist every 3 - 4 months
o Brien Holden Vision Institute and Outback Eye Team quarterly

o Dietician and Physio/exercise program 3 days a week

o Too Deadly for Diabetes Program

Services Offered:
Triage, assess and refer clients to appropriate health providers

Wound care

Clinical services as they present

Chronic Disease Management

Follow up referred clients

Medications review & monitoring

Local Medical Transport

School Health Clinics

General medical duties

Outreach clinic Orana Haven

Visiting Health Clinics

Health Assessments

Home visits

SEWB Support

Immunisation clinics

GP Consultations

Health education and
awareness promotions

Advocate and coordinate health
care & referrals

Case management and review
with service providers

56

Celebrating over 30 years of Service siuce 1956

Funded by: Federal Dept of Social Services — National Indigenous Australians Agency
NSW Health — Rural Doctors Network — Western NSW Primary Health Network



Brewarrina Aboriginal Medical Service

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020

Healthy for Life Program
e Health Check Clinics

Weilmoringle Primary School Orana Haven Clients Community members
Gainmarra-Birralee Pre School Clontarf Boys Academy St Patrick’s Primary School

Bre Central School

e Influenza vaccination clinics
| Brewarrina Central School Community members BAMS Staff |
Orana Haven

Regional Meetings:

Regional Eye Health Suicide Prevention Advisory Bila Muuiji Aboriginal Health
Partnership Group “Wallan Bulla” Service Incorporated
Ear Health Advisory Committee Q-Fever Advisory Committee SEWB Advisory Committee
Aboriginal Health Council PHN / AHMRC Round table NRT Advisory Committee
WLHD Partnership Planning RDN Stakeholder Outreach Premier and Cabinet Ministers

Local Representation:

Interagency Health Meetings Ngemba Community Working Suicide Prevention Network
Party Initiative
Integrated Care Program DV Youth Project NAIDOC Week Celebrations
Tenant Support Family Fun Day ANZAC March Remembrance Day
Local Emergency Management
Meetings
WAMS
Senior Personnel Meetings CQl Meetings Healthy 4 Life Regional
Meetings
Mangers meeting WHS Meetings Transport meetings
Chad Program RN on Country WAMS Community Garden
FCPHC Meeting AIMSF Meeting Respiratory Clinic

Conferences / Forums Attended
AHMRC Cancer Forum Immunisation Forum Rural Doctors. Network Forum
AHMRC AGM NACCHO AGM Women’s Summit

Health Promotion

Health Checks White Ribbon Day Jeans for Genes
Pink Ribbon Liver Clinic Day Diabetes Week
Mental Health Day Smoking awareness School Community Garden
Carers Week Breast Screen RUOK Day
Community Wellbeing Event School Flu Vaccine Clinic Liver Clinic Day
Child restraint day Men’s mental health awareness Homelessness week
Youth week Walk About Barber BAMS Open day 2019
Staff In-services
Rheumatic Heart Disease Covid 19 Infection Control Cold Chain Breach
Drug & Alcohol Updates Primary Health Eye Care My Health Record
Financial Assistance Medicare Claiming Work Health & Safety
Malnutrition in-service Malnutrition in-service Malnutrition in-service
NSPT PMHC-MDS training Managing Stress in the Working with parents affected by
session Workplace alcohol and other drug use:
Considering the needs of
children in practice"
Cannabis Retinal Camera Triaging
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Aboriginal Medical Service
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Training

Deadly Dads Facilitator

AMHFA Facilitator

Deadly Thinking

Work Health & Safety

Diabetes and the Eye

Retinal Photography

Opportunistic chlamydia &
gonorrhea screening

Understanding Childhood
Trauma

Chronic Disease Support
Program

Trauma Informed Care

Tenant Support Family Fun Day

Accidental councilor

Infant Child Youth and Family
(ICYF) Mental Health Service

Reducing the harms from
alcohol

Asthma and Spirometry Up date
for Aboriginal Health Workers

AGPAL Workshop Sista Speak Program training Mental health first aide
Wound Care Management Chronic Disease management Infection Control training
Seminar

Adult asthma update

Cervical Screening Program

Communicare Super User

Maggie’s Legacy

Communicare Training

Promoting Participation in the
National screening Program

External Relationships

Brewarrina Multipurpose Service

Mission Australia

McKillop

Western Local Health District

Brewarrina Central School

St Patrick’s School

Brewarrina Shire Council

Weilmoringle Public School

Brien Holden Vision Institute

Ngemba Community Working

Orana Haven Drug & Alcohol

Dubbo Western NSW Eye

Party
Primary Health Network

Rehabilitation Centre
Brewarrina Police, Fire &
Ambulance Services

Health Partnership
AHMRC

Staffing for the period;

e Katrina Ward Manager & Acting CEO (WAMS)

e Bernadette Hertslet Endorsed Enrolled Nurse - Clinic

e Dee-Anna Nixon Endorsed Enrolled Nurse - Healthy for Life

e Bianca Cochrane-Owers Trainee Aboriginal Health Pract. (resigned 24.7.2019)
¢ Nicole Bennett Senior Receptionist (resigned 15.5.2020)

e Betty Nicholls Outreach worker/Admin support (resigned 14.2.2020)
¢ lan Hammond SEWB Support Worker — Trainee (resigned 15.5.2020)
e Megan Kelly Community Development Worker — Suicide Prevention
e Charlene Noye Dual Qualified Dietitian/Exercise Physiologist

e Chris Boney Gardener / Maintenance

e Jenelle Hooper Cleaner (casual — left 14.8.2019)

e Bronwyn Moore Cleaner (casual)

e Tamika Nichols Cleaner (began 15.6.2020)

e Joseph Gordon Trainee AHW (started 2.9.2019)

e Mary Copp RN H4L (began 8.10.2019 resigned 20.9.2020)

e Gemma Roper Dietitian (began 18.2.2020)

¢ Ingrid Beetson Receptionist (began 2.6.2020)

e Tammy Biles Receptionist (began 23.6.2020)

e Ashley Griffiths Trainee AHW (began 18.11.2019 resigned Feb 2020)

Administration Staff are the frontline personnel who often become muilti skilled and perform the
general office duties which assist in the daily conduct of Clinics and other services.

¢ Nicole Bennett Senior receptionist

e Ingrid Beetson Receptionist

e Tammy Biles Receptionist

Aboriginal Outreach Program provides an avenue to promote better health and to advocate on
clients behalf to access healthcare assistance.
o Betty Nicholls Aboriginal Outreach Worker / Admin support
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General Practitioner Clinic provides a Locum GP service 5 days a week to enabled people to
access a doctor in a timely manner and be referred to specialists, medical or surgical treatment and
allied health care as required. The visiting GP’s also assist with monitoring managing the Primary
Health Care and Chronic Disease needs of clients.

o Bernadette Hertslet Endorsed Enrolled Nurse

e Joseph Gordon Aboriginal Health Worker

e Bianca Cochrane-Owers Aboriginal Health Practitioner

Healthy for Life Program provides primary health care services to the Brewarrina and surrounding
communities including Weilmoringle and Orana Haven Drug & Alcohol Rehabilitation Centre. This
team provides the planning and implementation of Health Assessments for individuals and assist
clients to access the Chronic Disease Programs such as ‘Too deadly for diabetes’ and exercise /
nutrition programs. Health promotion education and awareness events are also coordinated by the
healthy for life team.

e Dee Anna Nixon Endorsed Enrolled Nurse

e Charlene Noye Dual Qualified Dietitian/Exercise Physiologist
e Danielle Fletcher Dual Qualified Dietitian/Exercise Physiologist
e Annie Deane Exercise Therapist

e Gemma Roper Dietitian

e Mary Copp RN H4L

SEWB / Suicide Prevention Program provides visiting Psychologists who offers culturally
appropriate approaches and therapeutic intervention to healing that are strength-based and
empowering. A SEWB support worker and Community Development worker also provided ongoing
support and education for community members.

e lan Hammond SEWB Support Worker Trainee

o Megan Kelly Community Development Worker — Suicide Prevention
e Will Grech Psychologist

e Fran Read Psychologist

e Jo Langham Psychologist

Drug & Alcohol Counsellor visits from WAMS and provides services to Brewarrina which includes
individual assessment, counselling, education sessions and health promotion activities.
o Reg Rutene Murdi Paaki Drug and Alcohol Network Coordinator

Auxiliary Staff ensure the BAMS grounds and premises are well maintained and presented in an
inviting and clean manner.

e Chris Boney Gardener/Maintenance
¢ Jenelle Hooper Cleaner
e Bronwyn Moore Cleaner
e Michaela Skuthorpe Cleaner
e Tamika Nichols Cleaner

Staff Personal Development;

. Katrina Ward - WH&S Mandatory training, Communicare Super User, Cannabis In-service,
Trauma Informed Workshop

. Betty Nicholls - WH&S Mandatory training, Communicare Workshop, Opportunistic
chlamydia & gonorrhea screening, Financial development

. Nicole Bennett - WH&S Mandatory training, Communicare Super User, AGPAL Workshop,
Financial Development, Understanding Childhood Trauma,

. Dee Anna Nixon - WH&S Mandatory training, Communicare Workshop, Cannabis

Workshop, Financial development
Celebrating over 50 years of Seruice siuce 1956
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. Bernadette Hertslet - WH&S Mandatory training, Communicare Workshop, Opportunistic
chlamydia & gonorrhea screening, Financial development, AGPAL Workshop,
Understanding Childhood Trauma

. Bianca Cochrane-Owers - WH&S Mandatory training, Communicare Workshop, Financial
development, Cervical Screening program, Chronic Disease Support Program, Trauma
Informed workshop, Maggie’s Legacy

. Michaela Skuthorpe - WH&S Mandatory training, Opportunistic chlamydia & gonorrhea
screening, Financial development, Communicare

. Megan Kelly — Understanding Childhood Trauma,

. lan Hammond — Understanding Childhood Trauma, Deadly Thinking facilitator training,
AMHFA facilitator training, Cannabis In-service , Deadly Dads facilitator training

. Chris Boney - WH&S Mandatory training, Financial development.

Summary:

The BAMS team continues to provide culturally appropriate health services for the Brewarrina
community and work in partnership with RaRMs Doctors surgery, Local Health Service, Primary

Health Network and other health related organisations.

The GP clinic located within BAMS continues to provide quality medical service and primary health
care management through engagement of Locum GP’s 5 days a week. Through providing a
complete and professional service, clients not only receive comprehensive medical intervention and
monitoring but they can also be closely managed to improve overall health outcomes for clients of

the service.

The visiting GP’s work closely with the Healthy for Life team who consciously coordinate adult and
child health checks, which continues to be a beneficial tool in identifying and monitoring chronic
disease throughout the Brewarrina and Outreach communities. The “Too Deadly for Diabetes
Program” also continued and contribute to positive health outcomes through clients achieving
significant weight loss results leading to decreased medication dosing and improving the overall

management of diabetic and chronic disease symptoms.

Coordination of several immunisation clinics where implemented to increase the uptake of the flu
vaccine particularly with the onset of Covid 19 in the beginning of 2020. Covid 19 pandemic also
saw the need to adapt practice standards to abide by NSW Health restrictions and guidelines. Staff
where flexible in adopting pre-screening measure, promoting social distancing, deep cleaning and
frequent use of hand washing and/or the use of hand sanitizer, all of which are becoming accepted

as common practice.

BAMS provides an expert Optometry service in partnership with Brian Holden Vision and the
Outback Eye Team where access to substantial equipment allows for the Optometry teams to
deliver a high standard of care to individual clients, as well as providing follow up treatments and

procedures, including fitting of spectacles as required. Other visiting specialist services at BAMS
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include Psychology intervention, Ear Nose and Throat Specialist, Drug and Alcohol Counselling,
Podiatry, Women'’s Health and Sexual Health clinics. Unfortunately, the latter half of the reporting
period saw visiting and Allied Health services disrupted and impacted through Covid 19 restrictions

and precautions.

The inability for clinicians and health professionals to travel and community LEMC plans restricting
access to remote communities saw many clinics cancelled for several months. Where possible
telehealth services where substituted to provide a service and BAMS staff maintained physical
contact with community members were able. Community spirit was boosted through the distribution
of welfare packs, children’s activity packs and food parcel during the heightened period of

restrictions.

I would like to wholeheartedly thank and congratulate the dedicated staff at BAMS for their ongoing
diligence and commitment to ensuring the best possible health care has been maintained during a
very challenge period. Sincere thanks is also extended to the WAMS CEO, WAMS Staff and the
WAMS Directors for their continued support offered in my position. | look forward continuing to guide
quality primary health care services to members of the Brewarrina and surrounding communities.

Including providing professional support to the WAMS team.

KATRINA WARD
BAMS MANAGER

]
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GOONIMOO MOBILE CHILDRENS SERVICE REPORT
JULY 2019 TO JUNE 2020

Introduction

Goonimoo Mobile Children’s Service continued to provide a Playgroup service visiting small rural towns
and isolated communities within the Walgett Shire. The program provided an Early Childhood Educational
program in areas where access to other services is limited. Playgroup sessions fostered a play-based
learning approach to build on Early Childhood Education and learning as well as role-modelling positive
play techniques for children 0-5 years.

During this reporting period, the Child Injury Prevention Program also became a part of Goonimoo’s
services in August 2019. This project involves a community-led child injury prevention program in
partnership between the Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Ltd (WAMS), the Dharriwaa Elders Group,
Walgett (DEG), the University of New South Wales (UNSW), Kidsafe NSW and the University of
Wollongong.

One off Projects included funding from New South Wales Health for Drought funding under the Social and
Emotional wellbeing grants that Goonimoo delivered a series of four (4) Movie sessions during January
2020 in partnerships with the local Sporting Club, Walgett Shire Council Youth development team and
Mackillop Family Worker services. These sessions provided families and young children with an activity
as a community to support each other from the worries of the impact of the drought and the extreme
temperatures of summer. The Movies provided a cool place where families interacted and enjoyed a meal
together.

All Goonimoo’s face-to-face services were delivered from July 2019 until March 2020. From March to
June 2020, all Goonimoo’s playgroup services were suspended due to governing restrictions throughout
the COVID-19 pandemic. In absence of face-to-face services Goonimoo developed at home, learning
packs for families that were enrolled in Playgroup. These activities were delivered to families via postal
and home visits

These activities were designed to meet Goonimoo’s Funding KPIs and outcomes of assisting families with
activities to role model Play, focusing on School readiness as well as promoting activities for
parents/carers and children to engage together to promote positive nurturing relationships.

Goonimoo also continued to advocate the importance of safety through the Child Injury Prevention
Program. Focusing on topics that relate to the home as planned from the yarning circles. This was
presented in a way that provided parents with informative resources as well as fun activities to engage at
home.

Funding for the programs is received from three (3) sources:

e Prime Minister and Cabinet - Locational Supported Playgroup
e Prime Minister and Cabinet - Community Support Programme.
e UNSW - The Australian Prevention Partnership Centre

Play sessions conducted at the following venues

Collarenebri Preschool

Collarenebri Central School

Burren Junction Preschool

Carinda Public School and Carinda Hall

Euragai Goondi

Walgett Community College Primary / Biraleegal Preschool Walgett
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WAMS Referral Services accessed

¢ Midwifery supporting Mums with antenatal appointments during play sessions

e Social and Emotional Wellbeing Program team for family support and positive behaviour
techniques

o Exercise Physiologist and Dietitian for Nutrition Education as well as exercise programs tailored

for parents and children.

New Directions Mums and Bubs Nurse and Aboriginal Health Worker

Healthy for Life team, Children’s Health Checks

Eye Health Referrals

Oral Health — Dental team, Dental therapist — Information and check ups

Referrals to Goonimoo

Referrals have been received from the Local Doctors, Aboriginal Health workers, Schools, Family and
Community Services, Mackillop family worker services as well as Mission Australia.

All these children from referrals have been visited by the Programme within the existing Playgroups or
through one-on-one home visits where Early Childhood Education has been delivered in a Play-based
approach.

Staffing

Children’s Services Manager
Amy Townsend

Early Childhood Educators
Jade Thurston

Katie Shields

Cloe Dowell

Rebecca Cran

Child Injury Prevention Project Educator
Tara Smith

Community Development Activities

The Biggest Morning Tea - venue Carinda Goonimoo Open Day
International Women’s Day morning Tea Dental Therapist Visit

Pyjama Day in the Park Activities at the Walgett Library
Bulldust to Bitumen Educators Day

Weekly engagement with Elders morning tea yarning | Movie Days — January 2020

circle at Playgroup on Fridays (Friends & Coffee) Drought Relief SEWB days
Reconciliation Week Sorry Day
National Aboriginal Islander Children’s Day Christmas activities (Including Christmas Art

and Craft, and Santa and his Elves) visiting
Schools and Early Childhood Services within
the community.

Assisting community with drought relief activities Assistance supporting COVID-19 Care packs
Child Injury Prevention Pool day Goonimoo Playgroup Open day
Grandparents recognition day At home learning activites
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Professional Development

e First Aid for Early Childhood Education and Care and CPR update
e  Community Early Learning Australia — Managing Risk
e Work health and Safety Training
e Fire Safety Awareness
e Team building
e Inclusive practices
e School readiness
o Mental Health First Aid
e Rhyme time training
o Lifeline Domestic Violence 2 day workshop
e ABSEC Aboriginal Child and Family Conference
o First Nations Peoples Early Childhood Conference
¢ Child Protection training
e Ongoing AMSED training
e Manager completing training in Leadership and Management
e Lady Gowrie Early Learning Centre visit
Conclusion

Goonimoo has successfully delivered play sessions across the communities visited with additional
services being offered to support families to give children a good start in life through improved early
childhood development, care, education and school readiness that support children with successful
transitions to school.

Given the operational circumstances during COVID-19 Goonimoo staff continued to reach out and
support families during the trying times of despair where families were in isolation and battling with the
changes and the lack of community connectedness.

Goonimoo were also fortunate that this provided opportunities for new families that connected with the
Playgroup service and received additional support.

The feedback from children and families has been very positive therefore this has led Goonimoo to
continue in building up its relationships with families and welcoming more and more families each year.

The team look forward to continuing to build strong community relationships with children, families and
community members in promoting the importance of Early Childhood Education through a play-based
approach and providing many resources and services that support families with Child Injury Prevention.

AMY TOWNSEND
CHILDREN’S SERVICES MANAGER

I
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CHRONIC DISEASE TEAM REPORT
JULY 2019 TO JUNE 2020

Introduction

The Chronic Disease Team encompasses a range of services and continues to focus on the
prevalence of Chronic Disease within the Community. The Team conducts various Programs to help
identify those in the community who are at risk of having one or more Chronic Conditions. The team
provides ongoing patient education, regular review and assessment, and Care Planning which
facilitates referrals to other services to assist the people to achieve the best possible health outcome.

Doctors

A range of Visiting Specialists conduct regular Clinics throughout the year, telehealth services are
also available should the specialist not be available on-site. Regular Outreach Clinics are conducted
to ensure that patients in outlying communities have access to the service. Health Check Programs
are supported by GP’s in the Clinic in conjunction with Visiting Locums.

Transport

Patients are assisted with transport by our Aboriginal Outreach Worker for local appointments. Should
transport for be required for appointments in other regions this is available through the Clinic
Transport Team.

Programs

HEALTHY FOR LIFE PROGRAM provides services to the communities of Walgett, Namoi and
Gingie. This team provides the planning and implementation of Health Assessments for Aboriginal
people and assisting clients to access the Chronic Disease Programs. The team also conduct weekly
visits to the Dharriwaa Elders Group for health monitoring and organising guest speakers on
requested topics. Together with Ray Kelly, the team offer a “Too Deadly for Diabetes” Program where
participants are supported in a journey to improving their health. Improved the community garden by
working closely with DEG and UNSW, due to the current draught situation. H4L staff assist with
visiting specialist visits and the school health checks.

FAMILY CENTERED PRIMARY HEALTH CARE PROGRAM delivers a GP and Chronic Disease
Outreach service to the Goodooga and Pilliga communities. FCPHC outreach programs provides
comprehensive and coordinated primary health care to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people
in rural and remote areas where mainstream services are limited. This service is supported by Visiting
General Practitioners, nurses and health workers and is able to treat acute illnesses, assist in the
management chronic iliness, perform health assessments, and provides individual care planning for
patients.

DRUG AND ALCOHOL PROGRAM Coordinator provides services to Walgett, Collarenebri and
Brewarrina. This includes individual assessment, counselling, education sessions and health
promotion activities.
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SOCIAL, EMOTIONAL WELLBEING PROGRAM (SEWB) provides a Psychologist who offers
culturally appropriate approaches to healing that are strength-based and empowering.

DIETETIC AND EXERCISE PROGRAM continues with twice weekly exercise groups for the
community. They provide assessment and supervision for individuals with, or at risk of chronic
disease and are available via GP referral. The team run a School Program, offering the use of the
Exercise Therapy Room to School students with special needs requiring additional support to improve
their exercise and wellbeing. The team also delivers an exercise program every fortnight at Orana
Haven.

A regular Walking Group has been established and is open to anyone who would to participate.
Weekly yoga sessions are also conducted in the CWA Hall. Over the warmer months the Community
was able to participate in a Water Exercise Program that was conducted at the Walgett Pool. The
Cardiac Rehabilitation Program continues to grow and is an important program within the Chronic
Disease Building, now comprising two classes due to growth of numbers.

Cooking programs are also run in 6 week blocks, linking in with MacKillop Community Services.

ABORIGINAL FAMILY HEALTH Worker works collaboratively with local organizations to promote
awareness of the impact of family violence on individuals, families and the community. The role also
offers support and advocacy for those affected in addressing their health and legal needs.

ABORIGINAL OUTREACH WORKER (AOW) works independently in the community working
alongside other WAMS services. The role includes encouraging and assisting clients to access
WAMS and other Health Services and supporting the work of these services by providing home visits
and transport. Client and family education is an integral part of the AOW role in regards to reasons
for appointments.

MEDICAL STUDENTS completing their fifth year of study at the University of Western Sydney have

the opportunity to do a five week student placement at WAMS. Students are given a broad range of
experiences as they are rotated through the numerous services at WAMS.

Issues that have impacted on service delivery

High Staff turnover and the difficulties experienced in successfully recruiting and retaining
appropriately skilled staff was challenging and impeded service delivery. Instability within the
Chronic Disease Manager Role negatively impacted the leadership and governance for the team.

In addition to this without the allocation of a permanent fulltime General Medical Practitioner to the
Team, the ability to deliver a coordinated and seamless service is difficult. From May 2020, a
rotation of WAMS’ two permanent doctors on a week-on-week-off basis in the Chronic Disease
Building began and has been positively received by staff and patients alike.

The COVID-19 pandemic has significantly impacted service delivery, from March-June 2020. It
required the cancellation of many outside specialists and usual group activities. Alternate activities
such as welfare checks, food and medication deliveries and telehealth consults were undertaken by
staff in place of usual programs.
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The resumption of most services began in June, with changes to the way services are delivered,
including temperature testing, social distancing, wearing masks for patients, and caps on numbers
for group activities. Specialists from ‘hotspots’ continue to be precluded and this will affect waiting
lists in the future.

Visiting Specialists

Dermatologist Pediatrician Podiatrist Diabetes Educator
Optometrist Physiotherapist Occupational Therapist | Cardiologist
Speech Therapist Ultrasound

Telehealth Clinics
Endocrinology Clinic Cardiology — conducted by telehealth since April 2020 (due to COVID-19)

Other Clinics
Sleep Apnoea Clinic Chronic Disease GP (from May 2020)

Community Participation and Health Promotion Events

RU OK Day ANZAC NAIDOC Meals on Wheels

Flu Clinics — Gingie, FPNSW Cervical International Children’s | International Women'’s

Naomi, Police, Council | Screening Day Day

Breakfast Club Beat the Heat School Sports Council events

Breast Cancer ECAV Strong Child Care Restraint | Food safety for

Morning Tea Aboriginal Men Information and vulnerable people
Inspection Day

Health Check Programs

School- St Josephs School — Primary School — Secondary Women’s — Walgett
campus campus and Goodooga

Meetings — Internal

All staff and CD staff/daily Managers/weekly (COVID 19 | Senior personnel/monthly
(COVID 19)

Staff/monthly WH&S/monthly Quality/quarterly

Meetings — external

Suicide Prevention White Ribbon Interagency Multi- Purpose Services

Schools Family Planning NSW AHMRC LEMC (since March)
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Professional Development

An internal in-service calendar is an opportunity for staff to be updated with information on the latest
medical, health and social related issues pertaining to their work roles.

Nursing and AHW staff need to obtain more support and training in the chronic disease
management field to assist GP’s with management plans. Further skills development in performing
Health Checks is required. Work Instruction Processes for staff Accountabilities in Care Planning
Processes and Health Checks need to be refined to maximise Medicare Revenue for the

Organisation.

Ear health and wound care are additional areas for which nursing and AHW/AHP staff have
requested training, on a background of community need. Succession planning for the Eye Health
program has also been considered, with other staff undertaking training in using the retinal camera.

Staff undertaking their Cert IV in Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Primary Health Care need to
keep up their clinical skills by rotating through the Chronic Disease Building clinic and be mentored
by nurses. Some staff have progressed to be Aboriginal Health Practitioners which is a
commendable achievement.

Staffing
Danielle Allen

Sharnie Saunders
Alana Murray
Wayne Beddall
Sonia Blair
Sharon Lowe
Donald Morgan
Melissa Haley
Sophia Byers
Danielle Fletcher
Annie Deane
Debra Ricardi

Melissa White
Loretta Weatherall
Marissa Walford
Nichole Kennedy
Whitney Skuthorpe
Kira Mackay

Reg Rutene

Ricco Lane

Jenny Hunt

Carl Mason

Jake Gillies
Rowena McDonald
Will Grech

70

Chronic Disease Manager (ceased February 2020)

Administration Team Leader

Casual Receptionist (ceased October 2019)

Healthy for Life Regional Coordinator /Acting CDM

Registered Nurse Healthy for Life - transferred to Clinic November 2019
Registered Nurse FCPHC — locum (ceased May 2020)

Aboriginal Health Worker (ceased July 2019)

Aboriginal Health Worker (ceased September 2019)

Gardener - Euragai Goondi Community Garden (ceased April 2020)
Dual Qualified Dietitian/Exercise Scientist/Acting CDM

Exercise Therapist

Registered Nurse FCPHC- transferred to Clinic Nov 19 back to RN H4L
24 Feb 2020 and commenced RN — FCPHC May, 2020)

Aboriginal Health Worker

AHW Heathy for Life (commenced November 2019)

AHW FCPHC

Aboriginal Outreach Worker

Aboriginal Family Health worker (acting CPM — June 2020)
Registered Nurse FCPHC

Murdi Paaki Drug and Alcohol Network Coordinator

D & A Aboriginal Health Worker (ceased March 2020)

Aboriginal Health Worker Eye Health

Public Health Worker

Suicide Prevention Officer (ceased January 2020)

Psychologist

Psychologist
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Projects and Research

WANMS is working with both DEG and UNSW Impacting Engineer students to develop the local
Community Garden. The project aims to deliver water security to the garden by installing 100
wicking beds, allowing for garden maintenance and increasing productivity in our drought stricken
region. Working together to establish the garden will be important for food security, creating a
community space and producing vegetable boxes for members of the community most in need.
Stage 1 is currently in progress, with the garden site having been cleared in preparation for the
initial 50 wicking boxes and feed expected in the coming weeks.

Acknowledgement

The Team have faced a number of challenges throughout the year and there have been a number of
staff changes. They are satisfied of the programs that they have delivered over the year and have
demonstrated a commitment to health promotion by participating in community events. A number of
the AHWSs have received Practitioner status and they should be very proud of this achievement. Other
AHWs continue to work toward this achievement.

Staff cohesion and willingness to adapt and be flexible to changing conditions and requirements due
to COVID-19 has been commendable. The Team have shown professionalism and diligence in
continuing to service the community.

DANIELLE FLETCHER AND WAYNE BEDDALL
ACTING CHRONIC DISEASE MANAGERS

Celebrating over 50 years of Seruice siuce 1956
Funded by: Federal Dept of Social Services — National Indigenous Australians Agency 71
NSW Health — Rural Doctors Network — Western NSW Primary Health Network






Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020

CLINIC REPORT
JULY 2019 TO JUNE 2020

Introduction

The Clinic provides primary health, chronic disease management, dental, antenatal and
postnatal care and ongoing care for mothers and babies via a multidisciplinary team,
contractors and locums.

Doctors

Dr Paige Darlington ceased employment at WAMS in December 2019. Dr Keith Gleeson was
recruited as Senior Medical Officer in January 2020 and Dr Deborah Hough joined the WAMS
team in March 2020. Our permanent GP’s have also been supported by a pool of regular
locum GP’s. The COVID-19 pandemic and the subsequent travel restrictions has resulted in
some of these regular locum GP’s being unable to attend WAMS from interstate or known
hotspots which has put pressure on the remaining GP’s and the locum recruitment agencies
to find suitable replacements.

From March 2020, many community members commenced teleconsultations with GP’s as a
way of reducing the risk of contracting COVID-19 if they were to come into the clinic.

Pharmacy
The Unit is managed by the Senior Aboriginal Health Worker (SAHW). Any staff member who

assists in the dispensing of medications must have achieved their Dispensary Assistant
Certificate Il through the Pharmacy Guild of Australia. Currently there is one staff member
who has this qualification. Plans are being made to ensure more staff become qualified to
assist with dispensary, however finding a somewhere for staff to undertake this training is
proving difficult as the Walgett Pharmacy has not provided this service for some years.

Transport
The team assists clients to attend out-of-town specialist appointments as far as Orange or

Tamworth when clients are unable to transport themselves. Local transport ensures clients
can attend appointments with any of WAMS services. By providing this service, WAMS is
able to increase the accessibility of medical care for its clients. During the COVID-19
pandemic, out-of-town transport was ceased in an endeavour to keep our staff and
community safe. Emergency local transport has been maintained throughout the pandemic.

The transport team teamed up with Walgett Pharmacy to deliver their blister packs to the
community to reduce the amount of people having to leave their homes and therefore
reducing the risk of exposure to COVID-19.

Dental

WAMS has operated with locum Dentists during the year as attempts to recruit a permanent
dentist continues. The dental clinic was most affected by COVID-19 as it was instructed to
close for April and May. WAMS was able to operate with a locum Dentist for the first 2 weeks
in June until the Therapist came the end of June.
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The Dental Therapist visits three days a month to provide dental care to the children of
Walgett. The team visits the local pre-schools and Walgett Primary School to continue their
Teeth Brushing program and education. They also visit the Primary School on a monthly
basis to provide screening and follow-up care and play an active role during health check
weeks throughout the year. NSW Health response resulted in this service being ordered to
close until the end of June. We are now also posed with the issue of the border closure
between QLD and NSW impeding the Dental Therapist being able to attend.

Clinic

The Senior Aboriginal Health Worker works with the Clinic Nurse to provide pathology
collection, wound care, triage and physical observations for clients before they see the
doctor. Our long-term Clinic Enrolled Nurse left WAMS in January 2020. WAMS was able to
fill this position internally.

WAMS clinic underwent its three yearly accreditation in October 2019 through Quality
Practice Accreditation (QPA) to which it passed with no non-conformities.

Clinic processes were changed significantly from March 2020 due to the COVID-19
pandemic. This included screening patients over the phone when they were booking
appointments, screening patients at the front door prior to entering the building, and setting
up increased infection control procedures to deal with potentially infectious patients. The
clinic commenced closing its doors at 4.00pm to allow time for extra and thorough cleaning
to be completed at the end of each day.

Midwifery — Aboriginal Maternal Infant Health Services (AMIHS)

The Community Midwife and Aboriginal Health Worker provide antenatal and postnatal care
at home and at the clinic. The team consult with the Dubbo Obstetric Department or chosen
place of birth, as well as work with GP’s in a shared care arrangement. This service was also
severely affected due to the COVID-19 pandemic, and was reduced to only providing
emergency transport. The AMIHS team moved over to the Chronic Disease Building at the
commencement of the COVID-19 pandemic to help protect vulnerable pregnant women and
their babies from the increased risk of COVID-19 in the clinic building.

Collarenebri

The Aboriginal Health Worker (AHW) works in Collarenebri four days a week, and in Walgett
the other day. The AHW assists with healthcare within the MPS and Doctors Surgery in
Collarenebri in a partnership arrangement. They also coordinate multiple visiting services
and liaises with the schools to ensure appropriate screening and treatment is carried out at
the preschool, primary and high schools. The AHW is also very involved with many
community events within Collarenebri promoting WAMS services. During the pandemic, the
AHW did not come to Walgett for their one day a week to ensure that the Collarenebri team
had adequate staffing to assist in keeping the community as safe as possible.

Mothers & Babies
WAMS recruited a Child Family Health Nurse in August 2019 on a permanent part-time basis
providing developmental milestone assessments, education, breastfeeding support, and
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immunisations to children aged 5 and under, and support to mothers/carers. They also
coordinated the 2020 influenza vaccination program. The CFHN provides outreach to

Collarenebri, Goodooga and the Walgett MPS.

Students

Fifth year medical student placements from the University of Western Sydney continue to be
placed at WAMS on a five week placement throughout 2019 however due to the pandemic

the 2020 placements were put on hold.

Meetings — internal

Staff meetings

Clinic meetings

Quality Meetings

Dental Meetings

Supervision

WH&S

Case Conferencing

Planning meetings for local
events at WAMS

Senior Personnel meetings

Medical student presentations

Meetings — external

Ministers

Walgett MPS

Community Care Collarenebri

Local leadership group

PHN

AHMRC

Out of Home Care

Funding Bodies

Cancer Council

Integrated Care Strategy

Child Protection/case
conferencing

RDN

LEMC

Activities conducted

The following complementary programs were delivered to the community of Walgett:

NAIDOC involvement

Meals on Wheels

International Children’s Day
WAMS support Local Sports activities & Walgett Shire youth events

Child Car Restraint information and inspection Day

Issues that have impacted on service delivery

Oral Health Program (Walgett Community College — Primary)
Oral Health Program (Walgett Pre-schools — screening)

The COVID-19 pandemic has been the most significant challenge that WAMS and any
health service has ever faced. Staff and services have had to pull together to get through

such a challenging time.

Due to travel restrictions, social distancing measures and community safety, contractors
have been unable to visit, transport has been unable to be provided, and services have
been unable to operate. Telehealth and phone/video conferencing became the new norm,

Celebrating over 50 years of Seruice siuce 1956

Funded by: Federal Dept of Social Services — National Indigenous Australians Agency
NSW Health — Rural Doctors Network — Western NSW Primary Health Network




Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service Limited

o/
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020

and we have become very reliant of this technology which does pose its own challenges for
clients and staff.

Despite having emergency supplies of PPE as part of WAMS’ pandemic kit, this was not
adequate to deal with the demand required given the frequency of use and national
shortage of PPE. This all proved a challenge to ensure that we were providing safe and
effective care, whilst still being mindful that PPE was in short supply.

A lot of WAMS clients are regularly being serviced by locums, which is not ideal for the
continuity of care, however we have been lucky enough to have had two permanent GP’s
for the fourth quarter of this year and this has made a significant difference.

One staff member dispenses medications. Difficulty sourcing training, as Walgett Pharmacy
is not an RTO.

Professional Development
An internal in-service calendar is an opportunity for staff to be updated with information on
the latest medical, health and social related issues pertaining to their work roles.

Nursing and AHW staff need to obtain more support and training in the chronic disease
management field to assist GP’s with management plans.

Staff undertaking their Cert IV in Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Primary Health Care
need to keep up their clinical skills by rotating through the clinic and mentored by nurses.

The COVID-19 pandemic has shown us how important it is to maintain infection control

standards and therefore all staff need to be vigilant in ensuring they keep up to date with
infection control training.

Staffing during the reporting period

e Paige Darlington General Practitioner (ceased December 2019)

e Dr Keith Gleeson Senior Medical Officer (commenced December, 2019)
e Dr Deborah Hough General Practitioner (commenced April, 2020)

e Jacqui Burke Clinic Practice Manager (on leave June, 2020)

e Phillip Dowse Senior Aboriginal Health Worker/Acting CPM (June 2020)
e Cherin Singh Endorsed Enrolled Nurse (ceased Dec 2019)

e Sonia Blair Registered Nurse — Clinic (ceased October, 2020)

e Kayla Thurston Team Leader — Dental Team Leader

e Sarah Dowse Dental Assistant

e Gail Kennedy Casual Dental Assistant

e Lynne Turner Dental Therapist

e Ashraf Nesirwan Oral Health Therapist

e Sue Jenkins Collarenebri Aboriginal Health Worker

e Arthur Murray Transport driver
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e Richard Sharpley Transport Team Leader

e Deborah Russell Transport Driver (Casual)

e Kylee Tuhura Administration

e Emily Pitt Casual Receptionist

e Elisabeth Ineke Midwife AMIHS

e Selene Dennis AHW - AMIHS

e Cody Hatch NDMB Health Worker

e Belinda Woodham NDMB Register Nurse
Meetings

There have been many opportunities to work with local, regional and state-wide stakeholders
during the year resulting in great relationships, additions to funding and an understanding of
the complexities of the Aboriginal health sector. The COVID-19 pandemic required
numerous local meetings of the Local Emergency Management Committee (LEMC) to
develop a Local Pandemic Plan and ensure that all local services were providing services in
a consistent and safe manner to protect our community.

Acknowledgement

| would like to acknowledge the staff in the Clinic who have been a pleasure to work with. |
have received multiple compliments from clients and health professionals alike regarding the
care/service they receive and this comes down to the dedication of the staff to perform their
duties in a professional manner. Everyone is willing to step in and help each other out as
necessary. Without the staff, we would not be able to provide the quality and quantity of
services required to meet the local need and the staff should be acknowledged for this. | took
leave in June from this position and wish to thank Phillip Dowse for acting up during my
absence.

JACQUI BURKE
CLINIC PRACTICE MANAGER
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REPORT ON ORAL HEALTH PROGRAM

JULY 2019 TO JUNE 2020
Aims of the Dental Program
o To provide a culturally appropriate mix of dental health services to Aboriginal
people who live in Walgett and surrounding areas
o To improve access to dental services for clients of WAMS
o To build an effective Dental workforce at WAMS
o To Work effectively with local partners in the provision of dental care
Activities

Impact of COVID-19
WAMS has continued to provide oral health services to the people of Walgett and
surrounding areas. It provides dental care to Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal people.

The situation since March 2020 has been very challenging due to the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The dental clinic was closed from March to May, with dental staff
redeployed in other programs at WAMS.

The Dental Consultant provided regular updates for dental management during COVID
times including patient and clinic management, and relevant infection control practices.
She attended regular Community of Practice meetings established by NSW Health, and
accessed pertinent webinars and information provided by the Australian Dental
Association (ADA), as well as researching published literature.

As restrictions eased, the dental clinic opened again on 1 June, practising with enhanced
protocols according to NSW Health and ADA Guidelines. During this financial year,
WAMS engaged the following dentists for a total of 21 weeks:

Dr Michael Prochazka 1-12 July, 25 Nov - 6 Dec, 20-24 Jan, 2-13 Feb
Dr Peter Hill 15-26 July, 17-28 Feb, 1-12 June

Dr Tim Baker 23 Sept - 4 Oct

Dr Gari Watson 28 Oct - 15 Nov

Dr Sheela Sampath 14-18 Oct

Dr Steve Hill 9-20 Dec

We employ an Oral Health Therapist on a part time basis to provide ongoing care and
preventive advice to children and their families. Mr Ashraf Nesirwan works at WAMS
3 days per month, however this schedule was also disrupted due to the COVID-19
pandemic.

Mr Ashraf Nesirwan 8-10 July, 26-28 Aug, 23-26 Sept, 28-20 Oct,
25-28 Nov, 9-11 Dec, 13-15 Jan, 24-26 Feb, 16-18
March, 27-29 April

WAMS engages the services of Mr Alex de Matos a Dental Prosthetist on a sessional
basis to provide dentures to people on the waiting list. In total Alex provided 3 days per
week for 5 weeks.
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Mr Alex de Matos 4-16 Oct, 11-13 Nov, 13-15 Jan, 10-12 Feb, 9-11
March

We are very appreciative to these dental professionals for their commitment to our dental
program and their enthusiasm for the organisation and the community. We now have a
combined dental team that can provide the best care for the various groups, i.e for
children, denture needs, and general dentistry.

We are most grateful to Ms Jenni Floyd, Area Program Manager for Oral Health,
Western NSW Local Health District, and to the staff at the Dubbo Community Dental
Clinic, who have supported WAMS through funding and staff support.

Recruitment of Dental professionals in rural and remote areas is a national problem, and
WAMS continues to be supported by a group of interested Dental professionals who are
willing to commit to regular visits to Walgett. WAMS also utilises other avenues of
recruitment support such as linking in to professional networks to expand the pool of
available and appropriate dental practitioners.

Performance Measures

In March 2019 WAMS introduced Titanium dental practice management software,
funded by the Centre for Oral Health Strategy. Due to the redundancy of OASIS and
settling-in issues with Titanium it is not possible to present performance measures for the
whole year 2018-2019. Data below are for the period March - June 2019.

The following services by Dentists

Service type No. No. | Service type No. No.
provided | patients provided | patients

Examinations / 424 218 | Preventive 130 66

Diagnostics

incl Radiographs

Periodontal Treatments 11 8| Tooth 193 101

Extractions
Restorations 218 97 | Endodontic 15 7
Dentures 11 8 | Medications 72 64

The following services by the Oral Health Therapist

Service type No. No. | Service type No. No.
provided | patient provided | patients
s
Examinations / Diagnostics 459 262 | Preventive 531 201
incl radiographs
Restorations 109 48 | Tooth 38 28
Extractions
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| Endodontic | 12 | 71 | | |

Dental practitioners endeavour to practise preventive care and try to restore teeth rather
than extracting them. However, the history of dental care seeking behaviour is weighted
heavily towards relief of pain and associated tooth extraction/s.

The preventive approach adopted for the child dental program is resulting in fewer
extraction cases, with a greater emphasis on restoring and preserving teeth.

Dental Practice Accreditation

WAMS was successful in renewing its Dental Practice Accreditation with the National
Safety and Quality Health Service (NSQHS) in November 2019, on the first submission.
The Accreditation is valid unit 14 November 2022. This demonstrates WAMS dental
team's dedication, team work and a commitment to continuous quality improvement.

Child Dental Program

With the regular visits by WAMS Oral Health Therapists, WAMS can focus more on
preventive programs for preschool and school aged children. WAMS dental team utilises
the mobile dental drills to do simple techniques such as fluoride applications and decay
treatments at the schools.

The activities include regular screening and prioritising for dental care, implementing a
Fluoride varnish application program for under 5’s at high risk of dental decay, and
supporting school based toothbrushing programs, as well as working with young mothers
and carers.

School Tooth brushing Program

The school based tooth brushing program continues to run at the Koolyangarra and
Birraleegal preschools, and at Walgett Community College Primary School. The school
tooth brushing program is enthusiastically supported by the staff of the schools.

The Dental Team visits the schools regularly to monitor the program and provide
ongoing support. Staff also visit preschools to work with staff and parents on
improvement of oral health.

Coordination with Health Check Programs

The dental team is an integral part of the Health Checks organised by WAMS. These
have been run for women, men, pre-schoolers, primary school and high school children.
The Team provides a dental check, appropriate dental advice, and organises prioritised
referrals for those requiring further care.

The Team participated in the following checks: Walgett High School, Walgett Public
School, Birraleegal and Koolyangarra pre-schools.

Further Oral Health Promotion Activities

Dental staff provided information about dental care and services at WAMS and
distributed oral health care kits during NAIDOC week, at the Walgett Show, and at
Grawin. They provided oral health sessions to mothers and babies groups, antenatal
groups and playgroups, and Elders groups where they provided advice on oral hygiene
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and diet. The team is proactive with community education and acknowledge the
importance of good oral hygiene messages ‘getting out to the public’

Medicare Child Dental Benefits Schedule (CDBS)

The Dental continues to receive funding from the CDBS for eligible children - under the
age of 18 and on Family Tax Benefit A, with an allocation of $1000 per 2 years for
service item numbers.

Staff training and Support

Staff members, Kayla Thurston and Sarah Dowse have enrolled in the Certificate 4 in
Dental Radiography at OTEN. The dental and other health staff attended an Infection
Prevention and Control update training session in November, an accredited program
conducted by the Dental Assistants Professional Association.

Consultation and Co-operation

The Dental Consultant continues to support the program in offering best practice dental
care to the community serviced by WAMS. The Consultant works actively to recruit and
support Dentists, support local staff, and ensure adherence to adequate practice
management and reporting procedures. The Directors and staff are extremely grateful for
the support the Consultant has provided to promote and recruit resources for the Dental
Clinic.

The Western NSW Local Health District provides ongoing support for the WAMS dental
program, and there are good referral procedures between WAMS and the Western NSW
Local Health District dental clinics, for oral surgery and orthodontic cases. WAMS also
has a good communication and referral network with private Dentists in Dubbo.

Conclusion

WAMS has managed to provide dental care to Walgett and nearby communities, with an
increasing emphasis on preventative dental care, and adherence to best practice clinical
management, despite ongoing issues with recruitment of appropriate personnel.
Acknowledgment must be given to the local dental team in Walgett who continue to
demonstrate professionalism and a commitment to best practice dental care.

Dr SANDRA MEIHUBERS AM
DENTAL CONSULTANT

w £
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At the end of Nov 2019 DEG & Walgett Aboriginal Medical Service
convened a group of Yuwaya Ngarra-li collaborators and helpful agencies
to provide advice as we proceed our Food &Water for Life project. With
mounting drought & climate concerns, and after April's Yuwaya Ngarrali
Walgett Food Forum & the June 1999 supermarket fire, we were
determined to be water-efficient & ensure our community eats better,
more locally grown food. UNSW partners from the Sydney Yuwaya Ngarra-
li team, including Jacqui Webster from the George Institute and Greg Leslie
from the Global Water Institute and UNSW Impact Engineer students
joined DEG staff from Walgett's Yuwaya Ngarra-li team, directors & staff
from DEG & Walgett AMS. While together we work on various town water
& food matters with Council, Jessica Spencer NSW Regional Aboriginal
Environmental Health Project Officer, Luke Farr, gardener Walgett
Community College & Walgett’s IGA, TAFE and public schools. We agreed Above: The Walgett Food and Water for Life Working Group

on governance for Yuwaya Ngarra-li's Food & Water for Life Working physicallymeeting in the days pre-Covid 19 in the Walgett AMS.
Group and made plans for undertaking a community food project
incorporating a more productive and water efficient community garden,

Food and Water for Life Working Group

Left: Collaborators
from UNSW, WAMS
and DEG discuss a test
garden bed that wicks
moisture from a
reservoir. The students
trialled this water-
efficient system at the
request of WAMS
gardener Sophia Byers
who we thank for her
generosity and
commitment.

Above: DEG & WAMS Chairs with UNSW Greg Leslie meet to discuss
current town water emergency — bores not productive enough &
firefighting water.

Right: Thanks to a
financial contribution
from UNSW Global
Water Institute, SMK
Surveyors surveyed the
Walgett AMS
Community Garden at
the end of June 2020 -
the first step in DEG's
Yuwaya Ngarrali Water

Efficient Community Below: DEG’s Speaker Clem Dodd in the temporary &
Garden project being limited IGA store that opened months after IGA was lost.
; undertaken by
Above: In June 2020 one of Walgett's Food and Water For .
. ) . ) ) ) Walgett AMS with

Life projects began. DEG received financial assistance from UNSW Impact

the NSW Govt through its “Increasing Climate Change -

Resilience” program and this was added to by philanthopic

funds from the UNSW Philanthropy and volunteer

contributions from UNSW Impact Engineer students. The Together on the 14 August 2019

project will install 48 new water-efficient garden beds and DEG & WAMS made a Statement

shade structures so that the Walgett AMS Community regarding our work towards

Garden's output will be increased, & more water efficient. improving Walgett's food security
in Yuwaya Ngarra-li partnership

. . with UNSW experts. It can be
Food & Water 4 Life projects found on DEGs wie.

'v‘ - I{ | &l Left: a meeting at DEG with James

e > ‘ ‘ McTavish, Ashley Albury, Christine Corby
OAM and Bill Kennedy to work for the
Reverse osmosis system for Walgett. Both In response to Minister Wyatt’s media
organisations made a statement 14 Aug statement “Securing the essentials for remote
2019 regarding our work towards communities” 8 April 2020 DEG announced
improving Walgett's drinking water in that with the Walgett Food and Water For Life
Yuwaya Ngarra-li partnership with UNSW Working Group “we look forward to shifting
experts. some food systems that do not serve us”.
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